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Formed in April 2008, the IT Holdings (ITHD) Group is made up of the top information 

technology (IT) companies in Japan. At its core are five principal operating companies, which 

underpin excellent responses to the needs of clients in a wide range of industry sectors. As 

of March 31, 2011, the Group comprised 72 companies—53 of which fell under the scope of 

consolidation and 10 of which are affiliated companies accounted for under the equity 

method—and net sales reached ¥323 billion.

For year ended March 31, 2011

Net Sales

Sales breakdown by division 
2.4%

million¥7,604

This segment combines supple-

mentary services, such as leasing, 

extended through the provision  

of information systems. 

Other Business

What is the IT Holdings Group?

By 2015, the IT Holdings Group will have built a business portfolio geared for higher growth and 

higher profit by entrenching core businesses and establishing a presence in new businesses. 

Future Targets

The ITHD Group seeks to be a corporate citizen whose activities, namely, the provision of 

various services utilizing information technology (IT), match its status as a leading corporate 

group, and will strive to raise corporate value, supported in this effort by the high regard of all its 

stakeholders, including clients and shareholders as well as employees and their families.

We will cultivate a vibrant corporate culture that encourages companies and individuals under 

the Group umbrella to work toward higher goals and embrace new challenges, and thereby 

ensure corporate growth.

We will always provide our very best to clients by combining Group strengths to foster higher 

quality and greater sophistication in our technological capabilities.

We will uphold high corporate morals and fulfill our social obligations.

ITHD Group

Management Philosophy 

Core businesses

This segment offers total 

system integration services, 

from information system 

planning to configuration.

Software Development

For year ended March 31, 2011

Net Sales

Sales breakdown by division
50.7%

million¥163,889

This segment utilizes data centers to 

provide such services as outsourcing, 

system operations, network 

configuration and related services. 

Outsourcing and 
Network 

For year ended March 31, 2011

Net Sales

Sales breakdown by division
 38.5%

million¥124,496

This segment concentrates on 

the sale of software and 

hardware.

Solution Services

For year ended March 31, 2011

Net Sales

Sales breakdown by division 
8.4%

million¥27,183

G
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th rate
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Core businesses

Operating income ratio

Operating income ratio

2015

New, promising and overseas pursuits

Overseas
businesses

Consulting

New businesses

Core businesses

Outsourcing 
and network

Software
development

Solution 
services

Business
platform
services

Other new businesses

Outsourcing

Software
development

Solutions
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IT Holdings is created through the 

management integration of major 

domestic information service providers 

TIS Inc. and INTEC Holdings, Ltd.

The Group is reorganized. Key events 

include splitting off companies under 

the old TIS Group umbrella and 

merging INTEC Holdings into INTEC 

Inc., and then putting the surviving 

subsidiaries under the direct control of 

IT Holdings. 

SORUN CORPORATION joined the IT 

Holdings Group. 

April 2008

2008—2009

December 2009

Overall Progress and Results 
ITHD Group

IT Holdings Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Notes:	 1. U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from Japanese yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥83.15 = US$1, the approximate rate prevailing on March 31, 2011.
	 2.	 Return on equity = Net income/Equity capital [(equity capital at the beginning of the term + equity capital at the end of term)/2] x 100
	 3. Equity ratio = [Equity capital/Total assets] x 100
	 4. Equity capital = Net assets – [Subscription rights + Minority interests] = ¥143,646 million for the year ended March 31, 2011.

ITHD orchestrated a three-company 

merger involving TIS, SORUN 

Corporation and UFIT Co., Ltd., with 

TIS as the surviving company. 

April 2011

Net Sales by Business Segment  (Year ended March 31, 2011)

Outsourcing and Network 
¥124 billion (38.5%)

Net sales
¥323 billion

(100.0%)

Software Development 
¥163 billion (50.7%)

Other Business ¥7 billion (2.4%)

Solution Services 
¥27 billion (8.4%)

Net Sales by Client Sector  (Year ended March 31, 2011)

Net Sales of Japan’s Leading IT Companies

Credit Card 16.3%

Banking 8.0%

Insurance 7.2%

Other Finance 5.9%

Processing-Based 
Manufacturing 8.1%

Assembly-Based 
Manufacturing 14.3%

Distribution 7.1%

Others 2.7%

Services 21.7%

Public Institutions 8.7%

Net sales
¥323 billion

(100.0%)

Cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements 
Performance estimates and other forward-looking statements in these materials are based on information available to management and certain 

reasonable assumptions at the time of publication. Various factors may cause actual figures to differ considerably from estimates.

2011 2010 2011

Millions of yen Millions of yen Change
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

For year ended March 31:

Net sales ¥323,173 ¥313,856 +3.0% $3,886,632
Operating income 12,818 15,996 -19.9% 154,160
Net income 5,985 7,660 -21.9% 71,981
At year-end:

Total assets 301,076 313,077 -3.8% 3,620,878
Total net assets 151,110 155,075 +2.6% 1,817,321
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,237 31,401 -13.3% 327,564
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36,493 46,988 -22.3%  438,880
Per share of common stock (¥):

Net income, basic ¥68.19 ¥89.25 -23.6% $0.82
Net income, diluted — — — —
Net assets 1,636.56 1,602.77 +2.1% 19.68
Cash dividends 32.00 32 0.0% 0.38
Key ratios (%):

Return on equity 4.2% 5.70% -1.5 points
Equity ratio 47.7% 44.20% +3.5 points

Principal Operating
Companies

Consolidated Subsidiaries
Business Content

Fiscal 2011
Net Sales Domestic Overseas

TIS Inc. 2 3

Addresses IT needs of clients in many industries, including 
finance, manufacturing and service. Provides one-stop 
responses, ranging from platform system development to data 
center services.

¥81 billion 
(Consolidated)

SORUN 
CORPORATION

10* 3

Focuses on clients in finance and manufacturing sectors but 
working to achieve good balance of business with orders from 
telecommunications and public service sectors. Also develops 
systems for aerospace industry.

¥45 billion 
(Consolidated)

UFIT Co., Ltd. 2 0
Strengths in services for clients in credit card and consumer 
finance sectors. Focuses on outsourcing services.

¥38 billion
(Consolidated)

New TIS Inc.
 (From April 1, 2011)

¥166 billion
(Note)

INTEC Inc. 10 0

Boasts expertise in services for clients over a diverse industry spectrum, 
including finance, manufacturing, distribution, medical services and public 
services. Provides total solutions, from consultations and system 
development to outsourcing and network services.

¥103 billion 
(Consolidated)

AGREX INC. 6 0
Leading company in business process outsourcing in Japan. 
Listed on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (4799)

¥27 billion 
(Consolidated)

[For reference]

QUALICA INC. 0 2
Maintains a high profile with services for the manufacturing, distribution and service 
industries.

AJS Inc. 2 0 Focuses on systems for the manufacturing and medical services industries.

Notes: New TIS net sales of ¥166 billion is the combined total for TIS, Inc., SORUN CORPORATION and UFIT Co., Ltd., at fiscal 2011 year-end. 

Note: �The graph data indicates net sales of NTT Data Corporation, Nomura Research Institute, Ltd., ITOCHU 
Techno-Solutions Corporation, Nihon Unisys, Ltd., NS Solutions Corporation, CSK Corporation, FUJISOFT 
Incorporated, Sumisho Computer Systems Corporation (SCS), and ITHD. 

* �Including 
SORUN China
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Susumu Okamoto
President

Tetsuo Nakao 
Chairman

To Our Stakeholders
To Our Stakeholders3

Impact from the Great East Japan Earthquake

On behalf of senior management and employees throughout the ITHD Group, we would like to thank you, 

our shareholders, for your invaluable support. The books for fiscal 2011, the year ended March 31, 2011, 

have been closed and it is time to tell you the results. 

	 But first, we would like to take this opportunity to extend our most heartfelt sympathies to everyone in the 

area devastated by the Great East Japan Earthquake of March 2011.

	 Now to a quick review of fiscal 2011.

	 In a shift epitomized by growing interest in cloud computing, the information services industry is evolving, 

with system investment by clients moving away from the establishment of information systems in favor of 

enhanced application and operating efficiency of information and communications systems utilizing 

outsourcing services. 

	 To address qualitative changes in the business environment as well as the pace at which these changes 

are occurring, and to strengthen corporate capabilities and improve management efficiency, ITHD took steps 

to redefine the Group’s structure. Key to this process was the merger of three subsidiaries—TIS, Inc., 

SORUN CORPORATION and UFIT Co., Ltd.—effective April 1, 2011, and the merger of shared services 

subsidiaries. Unfortunately, the business environment continued to present challenges, particularly a 

persistent trend among clients to be more selective in their IT investments, and while the Group was able to 

boost sales, the prevailing circumstances inevitably led to lower profits. 

	 Going forward, ITHD will emphasize efforts to achieve a more efficient groupwide management structure 

and to reinforce business platforms, with the changing environment in mind, while striving to fully 

demonstrate the capabilities of the Group.

	 In this pursuit, we ask shareholders for their continued support. Your encouragement of our efforts is 

integral to our success.

June 2011

There were no injuries to employees of the ITHD Group caused by the Great East Japan Earthquake that 

occurred on March 11, 2011. Activities at offices in Sendai, Miyagi Prefecture, were temporarily interrupted 

by power outages, primarily, but resumed operations fairly soon and all locations are operating normally now. 

	 Data centers, scattered throughout Japan, are all operating normally. Each location is equipped with its 

own power-generation facilities and has concluded contracts with fuel suppliers to ensure continuous on-site 

operations, so planned and unplanned electricity interruptions, especially rolling blackouts, by Tokyo Electric 

Power Company, had absolutely no impact on power to run client systems. 

Support for People in the Disaster Zone

The ITHD Group undertook the following activities in support of reconstruction efforts in the area affected by 

the Great East Japan Earthquake. The Group will continue to be involved in whatever capacity it can to help 

in the recovery process.

Six Months’ Free Access to IT Resources

The immediate destruction caused by the earthquake and tsunami and then the rolling blackouts implemented to 

deal with reduced power-generating capacity made it difficult for companies and local governments to keep systems 

running and sidelined IT platforms that facilitate the distribution of information. TIS has offered businesses and public 

corporations affected by the disaster six months of its TIS Enterprise Ondemand Service, an enterprise-oriented 

PaaS/IaaS, at no charge so that they can maintain access to vital IT resources.

Tethered Hot-Air Balloon Ride at Evacuation Center in 

the Disaster Area

On May 5, 2011—Children’s Day in Japan—SORUN-

TOUHOKU Inc. and SorunPure Inc. organized a hot-air 

balloon ride at the evacuation center in the town of Watari, 

Miyagi Prefecture, to boost the spirits of people in the 

disaster zone. Everyone who came had a great time, 

especially the kids. 

Raising Donations to Finance Restoration

To contribute to the relief effort in the disaster zone and help those directly impacted by the disasters, ITHD Group 

companies as well as employees at these companies collected donations which were forwarded to the Japanese 

Red Cross Society.
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In April 2009, the ITHD Group embarked on IT 

Evolution 2011, its first medium-term 

management plan. This three-year blueprint is 

designed to quickly generate results from the 

April 2008 management integration that created 

ITHD. It also addresses the paradigm shift that 

characterizes the IT industry and prioritizes 

business model reform, from tailored software 

development for one client to services 

responding to multiple clients, through progress 

in cloud services over the medium term.

Extending the Range of Existing Business

Joint ordering activities, through which Group 

companies work together to cultivate client 

opportunities, yielded terrific results. The number 

of joint orders soared to 200 in fiscal 2011, with a 

value of ¥14.0 billion, compared with 121 orders 

worth ¥5.4 billion in fiscal 2010. 

	 To acquire a larger share of orders within 

client industries, we constantly explored new 

approaches to existing and potential clients 

through industry-specific study sessions for Group 

companies to gain greater insight into client 

needs. We also established the Group Solutions 

Forum, an internal structure that supports 

information exchange and provides Group 

companies with an opportunity to showcase 

respective corporate resources. Reciprocal 

knowledge of company strengths can be a 

valuable tool for securing joint orders.

Building the Next-Generation Data Center 

Business

Past efforts to build and expand data centers 

ready to meet growing demand for services such 

as cloud computing have already been rewarded 

with the April 2011 opening of GDC Gotenyama 

in the Shinagawa district of Tokyo and the June 

2011 opening of a data center operated by Power 

and IT Company, which was jointly established by 

Hokuriku Electric Power Company and INTEC. 

1 2
3

45
6
7 Pursue business activities 

underpinned by client trust.

Actively reform production 

platform and capitalize 

on new business opportunities.

Encourage greater 

management ef�ciency 

as a Group.

Strengthen �nancial 

position of the Group.

Promote measures that 

will fuel corporate growth 

and motivate employees.

Cultivate corporate culture 

that unites the Group.

Medium-term
Management Direction

Foster individuality of 

Group companies while 

demonstrating 

comprehensive strengths 

afforded by group 

structure, and expand 

scope of business 

activities. 

Progress through the Medium-term Management Plan 1
Efforts to Expand Business

Update on Key Strategies for Medium-term Growth
Update on Key Strategies for Medium-term Growth4

Efforts to Expand Business

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2010 
Fiscal 2011 

(Goals)
Fiscal 2011 

(Results)

Executed in Fiscal 
2012,

as of May 2011

B
usiness D

evelo
p

m
ent 

Plan Preparation First Medium-term Management Plan 

Existing 
Business

Expand activi-
ties through 
synergy fusion

Flagship account 
strategy

Investigation
Pursuit
(3 companies)

Expansion
(9 companies)

9 companies

Candidate 
Committee 
(identifying clients 
by industry/sector 
for possible 
flagship account 
status)

Manufacturing Finance

Solution Forum
Preliminary 
discussion
(35 projects)

Announcement of 
results

Preliminary discussion
(38 projects)

Undertook preliminary 
discussion, joint seminars, 
six exhibitions. 
Secured unofficial OK and 
orders on six projects

(Joint order results)
(29 projects/
¥2.4 billion)

(121 projects/
¥5.4 billion)

(200 projects/
¥14.0 billion)

Build and expand next-generation 
data centers (DC)

Shinsaibashi gDC
Tianjin DC, INTEC Manyo 
Square under construction

Opened Tianjin DC and 
INTEC Manyo Square

• �Opened for GDC 
Gotenyama

• �Gearing up for 
Power and  IT 
Company (July)

Overseas 
Business

Expand business presence, espe-
cially in the rest of Asia

Opened represen-
tative office in 
Vietnam

Dominant position strategy 
in China, specifically, Tianjin 
and Beijing, through SORUN 
connection

80% of Tianjin DC first stage 
construction (400 m2) has 
been reserved

Started work on 
second-stage 
construction (500 m2) 
at Tianjin DC

Support clients in their globalization 
efforts

Business alliance 
with BT

IT support for clients’ over-
seas bases

Suggested Europe VDC to 
principal clients

Expanded activities of 
QUALICA (SHANGHAI) 
and began offering 
SaaS

New 
Business

Solution business

Combine the 
know-how and 
technologies of 
TIS and INTEC 
into marketable 
solutions

• �Utilize BT alliance to culti-
vate cloud telephony busi-
ness

• �Add to service menu with 
solutions targeting the 
environment business

• �Establish department to 
address IFRS 

Promoted cloud telephony 
solution services

• �Call Note (July)

• �Call Crayon (September)

Create business platform business

Real Cloud 
Solution (IUK/
INTEC Systems 
Institute)

Business platform business 
(cloud business) 

    �Start with three layers of 
services: SaaS, PaaS, 
IaaS
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Promoting Business Overseas 

In fiscal 2011, the Tianjin Data Center, which 

opened in April 2010, has won high marks for 

services that are as highly secure and high quality 

as those available in Japan, thanks to the 

application of data center configuration and 

operational know-how accumulated by the Group 

in Japan. The second phase of construction is 

under way. Also, during fiscal 2011, ITHD efforts 

were directed toward the promotion of Europe 

VDC solutions to key customers. 

Developing New Businesses

Cloud services from the ITHD Group utilize results 

achieved through outsourcing and system 

development for clients in various industries, 

including finance, manufacturing and distribution. 

The Group has about 30 types of original cloud 

services in its business arsenal, including industry- 

and business-specific formats and shared service 

formats. Moving forward, the Group will use 

environment-friendly next-generation data centers 

featuring energy-saving technologies—a network 

of facilities that ITHD is steadily expanding—to 

promote wider interest in cloud services.

In fiscal 2011, ITHD introduced a cash 

management system (CMS) to make procurement 

and application of funds within the Group more 

effective and made advances on the reduction of 

interest-bearing debt.

	 In April 2010, the Company set up a 

groupwide health insurance plan as the groundwork 

for an employee health and welfare benefits 

platform. To create a groupwide communication 

platform, the Company embraced social networking 

services*. Group companies continue to promote 

measures, such as shared back-office operations, 

integrated planning on information systems and 

optimized group formation, initiated in fiscal 2009, 

and to direct energy into building a stronger, more 

efficient group management platform.

*�Social networking services (SNS): Community-based web service 

used within the IT Holdings Group as a tool to facilitate 

communication among employees.

Efforts to Enhance 

Management Efficiency

Progress through the Medium-term Management Plan 2
Efforts to Enhance Management Efficiency

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2010
Fiscal 2011 

(Goals)
Fiscal 2011 

(Results)

Executed in Fiscal 
2012, 

as of May 2011

B
usiness E

fficiency

Plan Preparation First Medium-term Management Plan 

Operations, 
Assets, Capital 
and Finances

Visualization of 
management system

Group presidents 
committee, executive 
committee and 
information exchange 
committee

Introduced 
hierarchical 
management method

Expand scope of 
Cash Management 
System (CMS)

CMS: 4 companies    
13 companies

• �Introduced man-
agement cockpit 
system

Apply new manage-
ment approaches

Concentration of 
Group’s headquarter 
operations

Established shared 
company (IT Service 
Force Inc.)

Merge ITSF and Web 
Office

(Number of companies 
and business activities 
targeted)

(10 companies/35 
operations)

(15 companies/60 
operations)

(12 companies/63 
operations)

Cost reduction through 
centralized purchasing

Implemented Group 
purchasing for indi-
rect materials

Expand scope of 
products under 
Group purchasing 
structure and the 
number of companies 
involved

Targeted products: 
10

Targeted companies: 
13

(Reduction) (¥20 million) (¥60 million) (¥55 million)

Effective use of capital Introduce CMS

Made progress 
toward reduced inter-
est-bearing debt 
through CMS use. 

(Number of companies 
targeted)

4 companies 13 companies

Personnel, 
Corporate 
Culture

Set up employee health 
and welfare benefits 
program

Made preparations 
for groupwide health 
insurance plan

Establish Group 
health insurance plan

Established Group 
health insurance plan

• �Integrate SORUN 
health insurance 
plan into Group 
plan

• �Extend the reach of 
activities 
undertaken by 
SORUN PURE 
(special subsidiary) 
to the Group

Enhance Group com-
munication platform

Introduced groupwide 
social networking 
system
Registered users: 
2,300

Registered users:
4,282

 

Group Formation

Promote optimization to 
create a leading 
corporate group in the 
IT industry. 

• �NEXWAY joins the 
Group

• �Restructured old 
TIS Group

• �Established ITSF

• �Established 
NEOAXIS

• �INTEC Holdings 
merged into INTEC

• �SORUN joins Group

• �Reassignments: 
IUK, Chuo System, 
TIS Total Service, 
Oartech.

• �Mergers: Keyport 
Solutions and es 
Crew, AC Medical 
and Cronova, and 
Koushi INTEC and 
Huma(n)

Mergers

• �TIS, SORUN and 
UFIT

• �ITSF and Web 
Office

• �INTEC, INTEC 
Systems Institute 
and Nippon 
System Gijutsu

Update on Key Strategies for Medium-term Growth
Update on Key Strategies for Medium-term Growth4
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ITHD

TISOperating companies

QUALICA

AJSAGREX

Keyport
Solutions

KOUSHI INTEC NEOAXIS

Chuo System
Other Group

company groups

IUK

SORUN

UFIT

Nippon System
Gijutsu

INTEC Systems
Institute

Huma(n)Es-Crew

BPO focus

INTEC
IT Service Force

SorunPure

Web Of�ce

(Governance-oriented)
Directors exchange 
information and pinpoint 
status on a monthly basis

Centralize common functions 
within the Group with an eye 
to enhance ef�ciency

Special function companies
(Services for the Group)

(Governance-oriented)
Dispatch directors from 
ITHD to subsidiaries

Focus on speci�c large- 
account clients

Shared services company

Special subsidiary

Focus sales on small and 
mid-sized companies

Realigning the Group
Companies under the ITHD Group umbrella are being realigned to reinforce corporate 

capabilities and improve management efficiency.

Push ahead with integration of Group companies from a perspective of sharper competitive capabilities 

matched to major changes in the operating environment

Promote streamlining, integration and realignment by function

New TIS

On April 1, 2011, we merged SORUN and 

UFIT into TIS to create a new TIS, Inc., which 

will draw on the technological strengths and 

know-how accumulated by each company on 

its own to provide enhanced services that 

meet all the business needs of its clients. The 

We merged Web Office and IT Service Force—

shared service companies that handle the back-

office operations of Group companies—to 

centralize administrative operations and promote a 

greater level of cohesion among Group 

companies. This merger will underpin greater 

efficiency in back-office activities that are common 

groupwide, accelerate cost-cutting efforts, and 

new TIS will implement steps to hone its 

competitive edge and trim costs, mainly 

through the integration of organizational 

structures, offices and internal systems, and 

aims to realize the benefits generated through 

the merger as quickly as possible.

Establish Sales Innovation Committee
Form a sales innovation committee, chaired by the president, that 
cuts across the whole company to tackle four key objectives.

1. 	 Raise TIS transactions in major clients.
2. 	 Enhance solution business.
	 • �Implement strategies conscious of the synergy  

between solutions and system integration. 
3. 	 Build a larger base of potential clients.
	 • �Draw out orders from dormant clients and expand 

transaction value per company. 
4. 	 Reinforce data center business 	
	 • �Strengthen operations undertaken at data centers in 

Tokyo, Nagoya and Osaka, and in Tianjin.

Centralize procurement functions and do more work in-house.
Integrate platform systems. 
Merge head office divisions and consolidate offices.

Strengths New TIS

Solutions and services
• More than 220 solutions
• High development platform expertise, exemplified by Xenlon

Data centers
Top-class in all regards, from floor space (100,000m2) and geographical area to service menu, 
including cloud computing. 

Major clients Extensive client base comprising more than 3,000 companies from all sectors of industry.

Steps to Expand Top-Line Operations

Steps to Improve Profitability

facilitate the provision of high-value-added 

services to companies under the Group umbrella 

as well as to companies outside the Group. 

	 We also brought special subsidiary SORUN 

PURE CORPORATION under our direct control 

and executed a merger of subsidiaries with INTEC 

as the surviving company. 

SORUN and UFIT merge with TIS

Merger of Group-Oriented Shared Services Companies and Other Realignment Efforts

Consolidated net sales: ¥ 81,930 millionTIS TIS
Consolidated net sales: ¥ 45,787 million

Consolidated net sales: ¥ 38,373 million

SORUN

UFIT

Simple consolidated net 
sales total for the new TIS

¥166,091 million

Consolidated net sales for each company are 
the actual results achieved in fiscal 2011. The new TIS will promote the following strategies, 

seeking to expand the scale of net sales and 
reduce costs. 

Steps to Expand Top Line Steps to Improve Profitability
1.  Raise major clients’ inner share. 
2.  Enhance solutions business.
3.  Cultivate a larger base of potential clients and then
     grow it bigger.
4.  Reinforce data center business.

1. Realize merger benefits as quickly as possible by
    accelerating the integration of organizational structures. 
2. Promote centralized procurement and joint purchases.
3. Integrate platform systems.
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Top Plan Strategy: Expand Data Center Business Top Plan Strategy: Cloud Computing

Operating Capabilities X XFacilities Location

The ITHD Group is promoting its next-generation 

data center business and expanding its stock 

business platform. In fiscal 2011, the data center 

network grew in Japan with the opening of the 

INTEC Manyo Square and overseas with the 

Tianjin Data Center. The network grew some more 

in April 2011 with the opening of the GDC 

Gotenyama in Tokyo. 

	 The Group’s data centers are noteworthy not 

only for reliable, high-quality system operation 

capabilities but also for location—geographically 

safer and more secure in a disaster situation—and 

The ITHD Group is nurturing cloud services as an 

integrated business under the catchphrase “Our 

Cloud, Your Dream” to support corporate business 

for facility design, in that the buildings feature seis-

mic isolation foundations to better withstand the 

force of earthquakes. Even with the devastation 

caused by the Great East Japan Earthquake in 

March 2011, domestic data centers were able to 

operate normally. In addition, they are located out-

side the area affected by rolling blackouts and a 

system is in place to ensure uninterrupted power 

through on-site generators and contracts with fuel 

suppliers so that power outages, planned or not, 

will have absolutely no impact on the power need-

ed to run client systems.

aspirations with a rich assortment of services, new 

ideas and high-value-added cloud technologies.

ITHD Group Cloud Strengths

Cloud Integration
As an independent systems integrator, ITHD utilizes cloud services provided by companies under the Group umbrella 
as well as non-Group companies to build cloud environments perfectly suited to clients’ needs. 

SaaS for Immediate Application 
to Business

We utilize business know-how and proven results for clients in a wide range of industries, including finance, 
manufacturing and distribution and the public sector, and offer the best solutions from a client’s perspective. 

Quality of System Operations Is 
Highest in Japan

With the largest data center network in Japan, we boast the newest facilities and proven system operation results to 
ensure safe and secure service platforms. 

Leading-Edge Cloud Services Foster 
Value Creation

We aggressively strive to develop the most advanced cloud technology available, leading the way in Japan and the 
industry as a whole. We aim to create value for our clients and the communities in which we all work. 

Business- and Industry-Specific Services Business-Specific, Industry-Crossing Services

Services Providing Platform Stability

Kentucky Fried Chicken Japan, Ltd.
Introduced i-TRe cloud-format product specification traceability service. 

Shochiku Co., Ltd.
Subscriber to TIS Enterprise Ondemand Service. 

Rakuten Travel, Inc.
Subscriber to combination service featuring Call Crayon SaaS system and Fusion 
Communications Corp. phone network.

INTEC Manyo Square (Toyama) 

22 centers worldwide, 
boasting 122,000m2 of floor space

• Offer services matched to clients’ 
business activities and their pur-
pose for using a data center.

• Develop high-value-added services. 

•Located outside rolling power failure zones.

•Built in areas less susceptible to damage in a natural disaster and incorpo-

rating a base-isolation structure for enhanced earthquake tolerance.

•Large, in-house power generator and priority supply  

contracts for fuel. 

•Newest data center facilities. 

Shinsaibashi gDC (TIS) (Osaka)

低解像度

GDC Gotenyama  (TIS) (Tokyo)
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Top Plan Strategy: China

Xi'an

Beijing

Tianjin

Wuhan

Offshore development base

Business of�ce

Data center

Shanghai

Dubbing fiscal 2011 “Globalization Year One” for 

the ITHD Group, management promoted efforts to 

expand operations abroad, especially in Asia. As 

part of this emphasis, the Group’s view of the 

Chinese market has evolved from its original 

purpose as a hub for offshore development to a  

strategic market for the Group’s services. INTEC 

split off activities undertaken by an existing 

subsidiary in China and established a new 

subsidiary, INTEC Shanghai Co., Ltd., with a local 

business network of 11 points staffed by more 

than 600 people. 

ITHD Group Strategy in China

QUALICA Reinforces Business Structure of Shanghai Subsidiary

ITHD Group company QUALICA INC. enhanced the business execution structure of its Shanghai subsidiary, 

QUALICA (SHANGHAI) Inc., and relocated the office. There will be a staffing increase from Japan as well as 

local recruitment. Through these steps, QUALICA aims to provide a wider range of solutions to Japanese 

companies developing a presence in China as well as to Chinese companies and to improve its 

responsiveness to local needs. 

	 Specifically, the company will complement JSCAT, an existing solution for the casting industry, by 

offering to the local market AToMsQube, a cloud-based production management system for the casting 

industry; TastyQube, a business support system for companies in the food service industry and services 

industry and their respective outlets; and SpecialtyQube, a similar business support system for retail specialty 

shops. 

Goals Highlights Fiscal 2011
Fiscal 2012 

(plans)
Key Players

Securing a market presence

• �Data center business

• �Solution services 
business

• �Alliances (business 
tie-ups and agency 
connections)

• �Tianjin Data Center 
fully open for busi-
ness 

• �Expand Tianjin Data 
Center

• �Business alliance 
with Dawning 
Information Industry 
Ltd. to promote 
cloud services. 

Overseas investment by clients 
(Japanese companies)

• �System configuration

• �Japanese know-how

• �Local hiring of 
essential personnel

• �Accelerate assign-
ment of personnel to 
factories being set 
up in China by major 
ITHD Group clients

• �Expand activities of 
QUALICA (SHANGHAI) 
Inc. and start  
offering SaaS 
AToMsQube and 
JSCAST

AToMsQube is a cloud-oriented production control system for processing- and 
assembly-based manufacturers. 
JSCAST is a casting design computer-aided-engineering system. 

ITHD Group Launches Cloud Telephony Business

In July 2011, the ITHD Group launched a cloud telephony business, in which high-level voice communication combining 

the Internet and voice over telephone equipment or networks is offered as a cloud service. 

	 The business currently comprises two services jointly offered by TIS and INTEC. They are Call Notes, an SaaS-

type incoming call management service, and Call Crayons, an Internet- and phone-linked solution for enhanced 

corporate contact to customers. The noteworthy feature of these services is that they issue virtual phone numbers that 

utilize the Internet rather than a phone line or phone network and thereby facilitate access to a range of information. 

These services have been embraced by major Internet-based companies. 

Merits of
the Internet

Merits of
the telephone

Call Crayons seamlessly draw on the 
merits of both modes of communication.

PhoneCookie—patented new technology 
connects companies with their customers.

Example of Application

Customer

Call Center

Both sides view the same screen while 
talking, and there is no cost burden on 

the customer.

Accesses website

Responds to called-in customer 
inquiries.

000-xxx-0000
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Four companies—TIS Inc., INTEC Inc., INTEC Systems Institute, Inc., and SORUN 
CORPORATION— underpin the Group’s efforts in leading-edge R&D in the domains described 
below. Note that INTEC Systems Institute merged with INTEC NetCore in April 2010, with INTEC 
Systems Institute the surviving company. 

Seeking to enhance the quality of software development services and associated productivity, the four R&D-

oriented companies under the Group umbrella maintain a steady and resourceful approach to software 

development technology. 

	 INTEC launched services for its Companywide Shared Development Platform for in-house development 

projects. The company also expanded the functions of knowledge-support systems to make its system integration 

(SI) business more efficient, pursued research on next-generation SI business models, and investigated and 

evaluated HTML5 as a next-generation RIA (Rich Internet Application) technology. 

	 In September 2010, TIS began companywide application of the newly developed Xenlon, a Java development 

framework. Xenlon is a compilation of know-how based on proprietary technology and actual results accumulated 

by the company. It embodies the following concepts. 

1.	 Development platform capitalization and sharing: Shares generic engineering platforms to facilitate use in a 

format that can be applied by anyone whenever needed, and also shares development know-how. 

2.	 Automated generation of programming code: Eliminates monotonous work and provides an environment in 

which engineers can concentrate on work that actually requires the skills of an engineer.

3.	 Enhanced programming quality: Configures frameworks allowing programming quality to be visualized 

automatically in real time. Results gleaned from an actual system development project show that Xenlon 

automatically generated about 50% of the code in the general processing area, excluding the customer’s own 

business logic, from programming specifications, and demonstrate its capacity to boost development productivity. 

In addition, TIS is making progress on verification of MapReduce technology, which dramatically shrinks batch-

processing time by spreading work across multiple, low-cost IA (Information Architecture) servers. Actual project 

verification confirmed that a weekly batch of complex computations on transaction data comprising several tens of 

millions of jobs, which initially took 15.5 hours to process, was wrapped up in under an hour when reimplemented 

with MapReduce.

	 TIS plans to introduce this technology to corporate customers in fiscal 2012 and will link the technology to 

joint verification and system replacement solutions. 

Another priority is R&D on platform technologies to support cloud computing. 

	 At INTEC, efforts have been directed into various areas, including R&D on platforms to simplify the transition 

of existing web applications into SaaS (software as a service), research into the implementation of data analysis 

services using Hadoop, research on security models for cloud environments, and R&D on data center automation 

and connection systems. 

	 With the pool of unallocated IPv4 (Internet Protocol version 4) addresses about to dry up, INTEC Systems 

Institute focused on activities linked to two announcements. One was a checklist for software applications that 

deal with the inevitable end of available IPv4 addresses. The company drew on accumulated expertise to create 

this checklist. The other was a countdown clock that shows the remaining inventory of IPv4 addresses by region. 

	 TIS directed efforts toward new configuration techniques for web applications, such as ARC (Agile x Ruby x 

Cloud), through the development and use of youRoom, a free collaboration tool, from SonicGarden, an in-house 

venture company. 

	 Putting this new development technique to work, SonicGarden created the youRoom prototype in just one 

week, after which the company raised the performance level with flexible, speedy improvements underpinned by 

Ruby technology. Services utilizing youRoom are now available in eight countries. 

	 youRoom was singled out for excellence at the Third Fukuoka Ruby Awards, an event sponsored by Fukuoka 

Prefecture and the Fukuoka Ruby Business Hub Promotion Committee to recognize achievements maximizing the 

utility of Ruby. 

	 TIS Enterprise Ondemand Service, an enterprise-oriented cloud service from TIS, was enhanced with the 

release of a customizable template that allows users to retain virtual machines as templates on the portal screen 

and to access these templates at any time. This feature trims the time required to create virtual machines and 

enables users to boost work efficiency. 

(1) �Software development technology

The explosive spread of smartphones and tablets began in 2010, and ITHD Group companies involved in R&D 

related to these devices had initially focused their efforts on platform technology. Now, however, an independent 

theme—AR (augmented reality) technology—is in the spotlight. Realizing the immense level of sophistication that 

AR technology brings to smartphones and tablets, each of the Group companies involved in R&D pursuits is mov-

ing forward on technology verification and field tests.

	 INTEC directed its attention toward R&D on smartphone remote control technology that addresses the risk of 

device loss or data leaks. In November 2010, the company revealed the creation of Smart-let, a smartphone 

remote control service. 

	 INTEC Systems Institute focused on R&D for AR technology and navigation based on positioning data and 

initiated on-site data navigation field tests in November 2010 at Toyama Family Park, a zoo operated by the city 

of Toyama. The company looked to the general public for participants, and the parents and children who took 

part had favorable comments to make. The system was even featured on a television program. 

	 TIS was also engaged in efforts to verify the use of AR technology for smartphone- and tablet-based corpo-

rate systems. Specifically, the company confirmed the practicality of AR technology for use in global positioning 

systems and image recognition and discovered that the technology could present innovative utilization solutions 

for smartphones and tablets used as devices to execute system-based enterprise services. TIS plans to introduce 

this technology to corporate customers in fiscal 2012 and to link the technology to joint verification and service 

application solutions. 

	 SORUN created a system geared to mobile devices, particularly smartphones, that utilizes AR technology to 

deliver easy-to-understand details on places of interest, souvenir shops, local cuisine and other tourist-related 

information to assist visitors with these devices to enjoy their sightseeing activities. The company worked with 

municipalities to run local field tests of the system and will use these results as well as other resources to 

enhance the system. Plans are to develop the system into a new business after fiscal 2012. 

The Group’s R&D plan also targets an assortment of social issues arising from changing conditions and perspec-

tives in society, such as global warming, a national demographic characterized by a low birthrate and a high per-

centage of seniors, and an increasingly difficult employment environment for young people. 

	 INTEC teamed up with Keio Research Institute at SFC—the Shonan-Fujisawa Campus of Keio University—

and Tulip TV to pursue joint research on the design of Toyama Media Platform, a media business to maintain and 

then expand information distribution in the Toyama area. 

	 INTEC Systems Institute promoted R&D on Web Portfolio as a next-generation e-learning system for universi-

ty students and working members of society and collaborated with several universities to run field tests of the 

system. The results were presented at Learning Forum London ePortfolio 2010, held in London in July 2010. 

	 Seeking to realize customized health care services, the company also investigated trends among government 

agencies and health insurance associations regarding medical treatment, insurance content and welfare pro-

grams. Another study was done on the information distribution technology needed to establish smart cities and 

smart grids—next-generation power transmission networks—which are attracting attention from the perspective 

of efficient use of electricity and energy.  

With the life-science community generating copious amount of genome information and protein data, bioinformat-

ics—the technology for handling biodata—has become essential to life science and innovative drug development 

research. INTEC Systems Institute embarked on R&D on bioinformatics-related systems more than 10 years ago. 

	 At the request of the Functional RNA Project, an initiative funded by the New Energy and Industrial 

Technology Development Organization, or NEDO, INTEC Systems Institute joined the Computational Biology 

Research Center in research activities, the results of which were announced at the 18th International Conference 

on Intelligent Systems for Molecular Biology, held in Boston, Massachusetts, in July 2010.

	 Also, in a similarly named strategic R&D project launched by the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry, 

efforts led to the identification of a cancer marker. INTEC Systems Institute filed an international application in 

accordance with the Patent Cooperation Treaty on the patent related to this biomarker. Next, the company will 

move forward on research that links newly developed technology to discoveries, especially new diagnostic drugs 

and therapies. 

	 All told, consolidated R&D expenses in fiscal 2011 reached ¥1,062 million. By operating segment, the TIS 

Group used ¥221 million, the INTEC Group used ¥720 million, and the SORUN Group used ¥81 million.

(2) Cloud Technology

(3) �Smartphone-Related Technology

(5) Bioinformatics-Related Systems 

(4) �New Social System
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To maintain the trust of all stakeholders, including clients and shareholders, and to be a corporate citizen who meets the 

expectations of society, the Company will strive to reinforce corporate governance, not only by raising the transparency and 

soundness of management practices but also by paying constant attention to the actions taken in the pursuit of business to 

ensure suitable levels of corporate ethics and legal compliance.

	 The Company’s governance structure relies on the holding company’s board of directors to achieve flexible and efficient 

management of the Group while respecting the individuality and independence of each Group company. 

The Company’s Board of Directors comprises no more 

than 15 members, as set forth in the Articles of 

Incorporation. The Board meets monthly but will also 

convene whenever necessary to discuss and finalize 

decisions regarding important business activities and legal 

matters pertaining to the execution of operations. 

	 To strengthen the supervisory function of the Board of 

Directors, two of the 10 directors on the Company’s Board 

of Directors are from outside the Company. The 

responsibilities of individual directors are clearly defined, 

and the term of office is limited to one year to create the 

best possible management structure to respond flexibly to 

changes in the operating environment.

	 The Company introduced a groupwide executive 

officer system and established an executive committee to 

support and expedite decision-making efforts relating to 

the execution of duties by representative directors. 

	 The Executive Committee meets as situations require 

to monitor progress of the business and affairs of the 

Group. This committee also discusses important issues 

related to the execution of operations, shares information 

and generally underpins enhanced governance of the 

Group.

	 The Company’s corporate structure and internal control systems are illustrated above.

The Company maintains a corporate auditor system. The Board of Corporate Auditors comprises four auditors, two of whom 

are external auditors. Corporate auditors attend Board of Directors’ meetings, examine important documents, perform audits 

of subsidiaries and, when necessary, seek the opinion of others, including the Company’s accounting firm, the Compliance 

Office and other units involved in internal audits. They also keep close watch over the execution of duties by directors 

pertaining to business and all operating activities. 

	 The Internal Audit Office, with a staff of three, is an internal auditing unit under the Compliance Division. This office 

exchanges information, as necessary, with units involved in internal audits at Group companies, including corporate auditors 

and accounting firms, and strives to ensure effective, high-caliber internal audits on a groupwide basis. In addition, the office 

exchanges information with the Finance and Accounting Department and the Compliance Office, verify explanations based on 

the results of implemented audits and any problem points discovered. 

Compensation for the Company’s directors (excluding external directors) comprises two portions: a base salary and an 

amount linked to performance. Compensation is reviewed annually for each director.

	 Base salary is a fixed monthly amount reflecting the individual rank of the director. The performance-linked portion is 

also a monthly amount specific to rank but tied to performance and must not exceed a fixed upper limit.

	 Guidelines have also been established that peg contributions into the executive shareholding association according to 

base salary and limit the purchase of stock to a fixed amount. 

I. Basic Policy

1. �Board of Directors, and Executive Officer System

General Meeting of Shareholders

IT Holdings

Board of Directors

President

Executive
Committee

Group companies

Board of 
Corporate Auditors

Accounting
Auditor

Appointment, Dismissal Appointment, Dismissal Appointment

Advice

Reports

Reports

Direction

Reports

Discussion

Appointment, 
Administration

Units involved in
internal auditsAudits

Reports

Group
Compliance
Committee

Risk Management 
Council

Group Compliance 
Council

Compliance
Of�ce

Group Security
Committee

Group Compliance
Committee

Group Risk
Management
Committee

2. �Corporate Auditors, Internal Auditing Departments and the Accounting Firm

3. Executive Compensation

Category Total base salary Number of executives

Directors  (external directors’ portion) ¥234 million  (¥12 million) 8  (3)

Corporate auditors  (external corporate auditors’ portion) ¥55 million   (¥34 million) 4  (3)

Total  (external executives’ portion) ¥290 million   (¥46 million) 12  (6)

Chairman Tetsuo Nakao Director and Senior Advisor Junji Kitagawa

President Susumu Okamoto Directors
* External Director

Hiroaki Fujimiya
Katsuki Kanaoka
Masaki Chitose

Shingo Oda *
Yoshinobu Ishigaki *

Executive  
Vice 
Presidents

Norio Maenishi
Tomoki Sato

Corporate Auditors
** External Corporate Auditor

Nobuyuki Yonezawa (standing auditor) 
Tadamasa Hayashi (standing auditor)
Jun Ito **
Shigekazu Takeuchi **

Board of Directors and Corporate Auditors (As of June 24, 2011)

The Company has engaged Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC as independent auditor responsible for accounting audits.

	 The certified public accountants who conduct audits of the Company’s books are as follows.

	 Certified public accountant 	 Osamu Oyama (three years of auditing IT Holdings)

	 Certified public accountant	 Keizo Omura (two years of auditing IT Holdings)

	 Certified public accountant 	 Masato Saito (three years of auditing IT Holdings)

	 Number of assistants involved in accounting operations

					     Certified public accountants	  5

					     Other assistants 	 11

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, the Company paid the accounting firm to provide the following services, in 

addition to the services covered in Article 2, Paragraph 1 of the Certified Public Accountants Law:

To verify the implementation and utilization status of the internal control system, based on Auditing Standards Committee 

Report No. 18 issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

	 The Company has not established a policy regarding compensation for audits executed by certified public accountants. 

The Company maintains an appropriate amount in line with the audit plan formed by certified public accountants and deter-

mines compensation for audits with the approval of the Board of Corporate Auditors.

5. �Compensation to Certified Public Accountants

 4. Accounting Audits

Notes:
1. The Company has not introduced a retirement benefits system nor does it pay out bonuses.
2.	In fiscal 2011, no employee salary portions were paid to employees who concurrently hold positions as directors. 
3. As of March 31, 2011, the Company had 10 directors, two of whom were external directors, and four corporate auditors, three of whom were 

external corporate auditors. The number of directors and the number of corporate auditors differ from those presented above because three 
directors did not receive compensation and one external director retired at the end of the 2nd General Meeting of Shareholders on June 24, 2010, 
but was included in the total. 

4. Total compensation paid to directors and corporate auditors was within ¥400 million per year for directors (within ¥50 million for external directors) and 
within ¥85 million for corporate auditors, as approved by shareholders at the 1st General Meeting of Shareholders on June 25, 2009. 

5. Applicable items under total amount of compensation, on a consolidated basis, paid to individual executives receiving compensation packages 
exceeding ¥100 million are presented below. 

Name Executive Position Company
Consolidated Compensation (Millions of yen) 

Total Compensation
Basic Salary Stock options Bonuses

Retirement 
benefits

Junji Kitagawa
Director IT Holdings 17 - - -

362
Director SORUN 44 - - 300
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(Millions of yen)

Year ended March 31, 2010 Year ended March 31, 2011
Compensation for audit 

certification
Compensation other than 

for audit certification
Compensation for audit 

certification
Compensation other than 

for audit certification

The filing company 52 1 49 1

Consolidated subsidiaries 228 53 243 43

Total 280 55 292 44

Management formulated a basic policy on corporate social responsibility, and the president continually conveys the spirit of this 

policy to executives to ensure that the corporate activities are conditioned by compliance with laws and regulations and 

underpinned by respect for social morals. The Company has the following structures in place to reinforce compliance and risk 

management practices.

The Compliance Department underpins the laterally extending compliance structure groupwide and identifies trouble spots. The 

Group Compliance Committee, chaired by the president, discusses compliance-oriented issues of importance on a groupwide 

basis and promotes widespread efforts to address areas in need of improvement. 

In the execution of its business activities, the Company is always aware of the various risks that accompany such 

activities. The risks of greatest weight for the Company, as an organization that handles information, are natural 

disasters, such as earthquakes, which could damage data centers, and information leaks, particularly unauthorized 

disclosure of personal information.  

	 Risk management is practiced at all Group companies, and the Risk Management Committee plays a key role in 

directing and supporting the activities undertaken by risk management committees at each Group company. In 

addition, the Company is ready to act quickly with various response teams, if a vulnerability is discovered. This is part 

of an internal structure to minimize the impact of a risk situation on operations by ensuring sufficient communication 

within the Group.

	 The Group Compliance Committee is a component of the Company’s risk management strategy to reinforce 

compliance practices groupwide and thereby enhance risk management.

	 These groupwide structures will be reviewed as necessary to keep responses current to the changing risks that 

mirror the evolution of the Group’s business activities and market conditions.

II. Risk Management System

1. Compliance Department and Group Compliance Committee

2. Status of Risk Management System

Ensure sound, transparent 
management practices

Provide optimum services

Develop talent

Respect the law

Maintain fair business practices

Protect the environment

Contribute to society

Be a part of the 
international community

Acknowledge responsibilities as a leading corporate group 
in the IT services industry and undertake sound corporate 
activities with integrity and clarity of purpose. In addition, be 
sincere and fair in dealings with all stakeholders.

Always provide the very best to clients and strive to raise 
customer satisfaction levels through excellent quality and 
technology built on the composite strengths of the Group.

Cultivate an environment in which employees always look ahead, 
striving to achieve higher goals and embracing new challenges. 
Provide opportunities to grow and realize personal goals, create a 
safe and productive work environment, and give everyone the 
freedom to reach their potential.

Maintain high corporate morals, obey the law and uphold 
parameters of socially acceptable conduct.
Have absolutely nothing to do with antisocial forces.

Ensure an appropriate perspective on business transactions, 
based on fair and open competition.

Recognize that environmental problems warrant universal 
attention and promote efforts to save resources and energy in 
the execution of corporate activities. Also, through IT services, 
support clients’ efforts to enhance operating efficiency and 
reduce energy consumption, thereby contributing to lower 
environmental impact.

Actively participate in community events as a corporate citizen 
whose social standing matches its leading industry status.

Naturally, obey internationally recognized rules and local laws in 
the execution of cross-border projects, but also contribute to 
social and economic development in the countries where the
Group maintains a presence by recognizing local culture and 
customs.

Basic Direction on CSR 

The management philosophy that permeates the ITHD Group stresses the Group’s 

development into a corporate citizen whose activities, hinging on the provision of various 

services utilizing IT, match its status as a leading corporate group. This philosophy also 

underpins the Group’s efforts to raise corporate value, supported in this effort by the high 

regard of all its stakeholders, including clients and shareholders as well as employees 

and their families. The Group’s stance on corporate social responsibility is evident in its 

commitment to cultivate a vibrant corporate culture that encourages the companies and 

individuals under the Group umbrella to work toward higher goals and embrace new 

challenges, to be honest and fair in business pursuits based on respect for the law, of 

course, as well as high moral standards, and to fulfill social obligations. This is the 

Group’s basic direction on CSR.

Notes:
(1)	Approval Criteria for Election of Directors
In its Articles of Incorporation, the Company sets forth a clause stating that the appointment of a candidate to the Board of Directors must be approved by a 
majority vote of shareholders in attendance whose combined shareholdings represent more than one-third of total voting rights held by shareholders with the 
ability to exercise such rights. The Articles of Incorporation include a clause preventing cumulative voting in obtaining approval of appointment for director 
candidates. 

(2)	Approval Criteria for Special Resolutions at the General Meeting of Shareholders
Special resolutions described under Article 309, Paragraph 2 of the Company Law that are put before the general meeting of shareholders must, in accordance 
with a clause provided by the Company in its Articles of Incorporation, be passed with a number of votes corresponding to more than two-thirds of voting 
rights held by shareholders in attendance whose combined shareholdings represent no less than one-third of total voting rights held by shareholders with the 
power to exercise such rights. Management believes that this reduced quorum for special resolutions facilitates the execution of the general meeting of 
shareholders. 

(3)	General Meeting of Shareholders’ Agenda Items that Can Be Resolved by the Board of Directors
(i)	 Seeking to achieve a flexible capital policy geared to the operating environment, the Company provides in its Articles of Incorporation a clause allowing the 

Board of Directors to approve the purchase of treasury stock from the market, in accordance with Article 165, Paragraph 2 of the Company Law. 
(ii)	The Company’s Articles of Incorporation include a clause that grants the Board of Directors the authority to approve the distribution of retained earnings to 

registered shareholders as of September 30 each year, as described in Article 454, Paragraph 5 of the Company Law, to promote the flexible return of 
profits to shareholders. 

(4)	Limited Liability Agreements with External Directors and External Corporate Auditors
In accordance with Article 427, Paragraph 1 of the Company Law, the Company enters into agreements with its external directors and external corporate 
auditors that limit their liability for compensation under Article 423, Paragraph 1 of the Company Law. The liability amount pursuant to such agreements shall 
be limited to the minimum stated in Article 425, Paragraph 1 of the Company Law. 
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As of March 31, 2011, the ITHD Group comprised parent company IT Holdings Corporation (“ITHD” or “the Company”) 

and 53 consolidated subsidiaries, including principal companies TIS Inc., INTEC Inc., SORUN CORPORATION, UFIT 

Co., Ltd., AGREX INC., QUALICA INC. and AJS Inc.

	 New to the ITHD Group in fiscal 2011, ended March 31, 2010, were AC MEDICAL INC., through establishment, 

and ASAHI KASEI AGMS CORPORATION, through equity acquisition.

	 Several mergers took place during fiscal 2011, with the non-surviving companies removed from the scope of 

consolidation. On October 1, 2010, Cronova Co., Ltd., was absorbed by AC Medical and es Crew, Inc., was absorbed 

by Keyport Solutions, Inc. On January 1, 2011, Huma(n) Corporation was absorbed by KOUSHI INTEC Inc.

	 In December 2010, all shares in EX Inc., were sold and the company was removed from the scope of 

consolidation. 

Consolidated net sales grew 3.0%, to ¥323,173 million ($3,886 million), buoyed by a full-year contribution from 

SORUN, which joined the ITHD Group in December 2009. A breakdown of performance by business segment is 

presented below.

Outsourcing and Network

Segment sales for fiscal 2011 slipped 1.3% year-on-year, to ¥124,496 million ($1,497 million), as the completion of 

large contracts and continued customer requests for price reductions eroded the positive impact gained from SORUN’s 

contribution. 

Software Development

SORUN’s solid results offset declines elsewhere in the software development business, underpinning a 5.1% year-on-

year increase in segment sales, to ¥163,889 million ($1,971 million). 

Solution Services

SORUN’s inclusion under the umbrella of consolidation secured an 8.6% year-on-year improvement in segment sales, 

to ¥27,183 million ($327 million).

Other Business

Sales totaled ¥7,604 million ($91 million), an increase of 13.6% year-on-year. 

Cost of sales grew 2.5% from fiscal 2010, to ¥261,146 million ($3,140 million), but the cost of sales ratio dipped 0.4 

percentage point, to ¥80.8%. Consequently, gross profit rose 5.1%, to ¥62,027 million ($745 million), and the gross 

profit ratio edged up 0.4 percentage point, to 19.2%. 

	 Selling, general and administrative (SGA) expenses jumped 14.4%, to ¥49,209 million ($591 million). As a 

percentage of net sales, SGA expenses expanded 1.5 percentage points, to 15.2%. 

	 As a result, operating income fell 19.9%, to ¥12,818 million ($154 million), and net income retreated 21.9%, to 

¥5,985 million ($71 million). 

Millions of yen

2011 2010 % change

Net sales ¥323,173 ¥313,856 +3.0

  Outsourcing and network 124,496 126,164 -1.3

  Software development 163,889 155,976 +5.1

  Solution services 27,183 25,021 +8.6

  Other business 7,604 6,693 +13.6

Millions of yen

2011 2010 % change

Cost of sales ¥261,146 ¥254,827 +2.5%

Cost of sales ratio 80.8% 81.2% -0.4 points

Gross profit 62,027 59,029 +5.1%

Gross profit margin 19.2% 18.8% +0.4  points

Selling, general and administrative expenses 49,209 43,033 +14.4%

Ratio of selling, general and administrative expenses to net sales 15.2% 13.7% +1.5 points

Operating income 12,818 15,996 -19.9%

Operating income ratio 4.0% 5.1% -1.1 points

Net income 5,985 7,660 -21.9%

Return on sales 1.9% 2.4% -0.5 points
Net Sales

Profit and Loss Analysis

Costs, Expenses and Earnings

Changes in Segment Information Disclosure

Disclosed Units

New Segment Business Content

ITHD has been promoting lateral implementation of administrative practices throughout the Group by 

standardizing management and accounting systems at principal companies under the Group umbrella and by 

visualizing performance and status at each company. Consequently, the Company will disclose information 

according to business segment, as presented below, instead of by principal Group company, effective from 

the fiscal 2012 reporting period. 

IT Infrastructure Services
Provide self-administered computer utility or system operation services through large IT facilities, including data 
centers. 

Financial IT Services
Support clients in their efforts to make greater use of IT in their operations and in the execution of their business 
activities with IT expertise and business know-how specific to the finance industry.

Industrial IT Services
Support clients in their efforts to make greater use of IT in their operations and in the execution of their business 
activities with IT expertise and business know-how in areas other than finance, namely industrial and public sectors. 

Other Business Activities other than those described above.
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Up to March 2011 From April 2012

ITHD, consolidated ITHD, consolidated

TIS Group IT Infrastructure Services

Other Business

Financial IT 
Services

Industrial IT 
Services

INTEC Group

SORUN Group

UFIT Group

AGREX Group
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As of March 31, 2011, total assets were ¥301,076 million ($3,620 million), down 3.8% from a year earlier. Of this 

amount, total property and equipment accounted for ¥95,458 million ($1,148 million), up 3.8%, and current assets 

represented ¥128,455 million ($1,544 million), down 9.5%. Total liabilities came to ¥149,966 million ($1,803 million), 

down 5.1%, and total net assets were ¥151,110 million ($1,817 million), down 2.6%. Equity capital, calculated by 

subtracting ¥7,434 million ($89 million) in minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries and ¥29 million ($351 thousand) 

in subscription rights from net assets, increased 3.8%, to ¥143,646 million, and the equity ratio rebounded 3.5 

percentage points, to 47.7%.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of fiscal 2011 amounted to ¥36,493 million ($438 million), down 22.3% from the 

end of fiscal 2010.

	 Net cash provided by operating activities slipped 13.3%, to ¥27,237 million ($327 million). Major components 

contributing to cash flow, aside from income before income taxes and minority interests, at ¥10,145 million ($122 

million), were the positive effect of depreciation, at ¥12,308 million ($148 million), a ¥3,173 million ($38 million) 

decrease in notes and accounts receivable, and ¥2,199 million ($26 million) associated with the implementation of an 

accounting standard for asset retirement obligations. Major cash-limiting components were a ¥3,005 million ($36 

million) decrease in gain on negative goodwill and ¥2,998 million ($36 million) in income tax payments. 

	 Net cash used in investing activities dropped 26.3%, to ¥18,957 million ($227 million). This reflects the inflow of 

¥4,197 million ($50 million) in proceeds from the sale of investments in securities and the outflow of ¥10,510 million 

($126 million) to purchase property and equipment, ¥6,312 million ($75 million) to acquire intangible assets, and ¥4,313 

million ($51 million) to buy shares in companies that became newly consolidated subsidiaries.

	 Cash flows from financing activities shifted from a net cash provided by position, at ¥6,139 million in fiscal 2010 to 

a net cash used position in fiscal 2011, at ¥18,756 million ($225 million). The reversal in position is largely because the 

inflow of ¥25,495 million ($306 million) in proceeds from long-term bank loans was overshadowed by a net decrease of 

¥21,266 ($255 million) in short-term bank loans, ¥14,681 million ($176 million) applied to repayment of long-term bank 

loans and ¥4,000 million ($48 million) for redemption of bonds. 

Millions of yen

2011 2010 % change

Total assets ¥301,076 ¥313,077 -3.8%

Total liabilities 149,966 158,002 -5.1 

Total net assets 151,110 155,075 -2.6 

  Minority interests 7,434 16,655 -55.4 

  Subscription rights 29 19 +52.6 

Equity capital 143,646 138,401 +3.8 

Key ratios: %

Equity ratio1 47.7% 44.2% +3.5 points

Return on assets

Return on equity2 4.2 5.7 -1.5 points

Assets

Financial Position

Notes:	 1.		Equity ratio = (Equity capital / Total assets) x 100
	 2.	Return on equity = Net income /Equity capital [(equity capital at the beginning of the term + equity capital at the end of term)/2] x 100

Cash Flow Status

Basic Correlation between Old and New Segment Classifications

Comparison of Fiscal 2011 Net Sales and Order Status  
under Old and New Segment Classifications (Millions of yen)

Key Changes
• �The execution of business activities that hinge not on company-owned facilities but on human resources—that is, primarily the assign-

ment of essential system operation personnel to the large IT facilities of other companies—will be shifted out of the Outsourcing and 
Network segment. 

• �The Software Development and Solutions segments are closely connected and will be merged, with inherent expertise allocated sepa-
rately to address financial and non-financial system integration requests. 

*Software Development portion only

*Software Development portion only
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Businesses
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Outsourcing and Network IT Infrastructure Services

Other Business

Financial IT 
Services

Industrial IT 
Services

Software Development

Solution Services

Other Business

ITHD (Consolidated) Fiscal 2011

Net Sales 323,173

Outsourcing and 
Network

38.5% 124,495

Software 
Development

50.7% 163,889

Solution 
Services

8.4% 27,183

Other Business 2.4% 7,604

ITHD (Consolidated) Fiscal 2011

Net Sales 323,173

IT Infrastructure 
Services

33.8% 109,099

Financial IT 
Services

22.5% 72,700

Industrial IT 
Services

41.5% 134,171

Other Business 2.2% 7,203

ITHD (Consolidated) Fiscal 2011

Order Volume 162,287

Financial IT 
Services

65,053

Industrial IT 
Services

97,234

Order Balance* 47,967

Financial IT 
Services

21,075

Industrial IT 
Services

26,892

ITHD (Consolidated) Fiscal 2011

Order Volume 162,287

Order Balance* 47,967

S
e
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Risk specific to each business segment may arise. In the software development business, for example, projects 

could turn unprofitable, while system malfunctions could interrupt services in the outsourcing business. The 

Company applies various measures to prevent the manifestation of such risks. 

	 In the outsourcing business, data centers under the Group umbrella offer services at home and abroad—in 

Tokyo, Osaka, Kanagawa Prefecture, Tochigi Prefecture, Toyama Prefecture and Aichi Prefecture as well as in Tianjin, 

China, and other locations—24 hours a day every day of the year. A variety of a installations, such as a base-

isolation structure for enhanced earthquake tolerance, an on-site generator to ensure uninterrupted power supply, 

and crime-prevention systems to thwart unauthorized access, have been incorporated into the buildings to control 

foreseeable risk. Nevertheless, if an extraordinarily significant event, such as an extended power failure, a large-scale 

natural disaster of inconceivable magnitude, international conflict or an act of terrorism, or major criminal activity, 

were to occur and disrupt the smooth execution of data center activities, the Group’s business results and financial 

position could be adversely affected.

	 All forward-looking statements in this document are based on information available to management as of June 

27, 2011.

Business and Other Risks

ITHD has made the long-term, comprehensive return of profits to shareholders a management priority and seeks to 

maintain stable dividends—targeting a consolidated payout ratio of 30%—while taking into account performance 

trends, financial status, and the need to enrich retained earnings to support business growth.

	 In fiscal 2011, the interim dividend was set at ¥12 per share and the year-end dividend was ¥20 per share. 

	 For fiscal 2012, management does not plan to distribute an interim dividend and will probably reduce the annual 

dividend to ¥18 per share. 

Millions of yen

2011 2010 % change

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥36,493 ¥46,988 -22.3%

Net cash provided by operating activities 27,237 31,401 -13.3

Net cash used in investing activities (18,957) (25,727) -26.3

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (18,756) 6,139 —

Dividend Policy 

Yen

2011 2010 % change

Per share data:

Net income per share ¥68.19 ¥89.25 -23.6%

Net assets per share 1,636.56 1,602.77 +2.1%

Dividend per share 32.00 32.00 -

27

Financial Review 
Financial Review 8

28

Profile
Financial 

Highlights
To Our 

Stakeholders
Key Strategies 

Topics
R &

 D
Corporate 

Governance
Financial Review

Financial Section
Corporate D

ata
Financial Review



Report of Independent Auditors 

The Board of Directors 
IT Holdings Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of IT Holdings Corporation 
and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended and 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2011, all 
expressed in yen.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of IT Holdings Corporation and consolidated 
subsidiaries at March 31, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated results of their operations 
and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in Japan. 

Supplemental Information 
1 As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective April 1, 2010, 

IT Holdings Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries have been applying the 
“Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations” and “Guidance on Accounting 
Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations”. 

2 As described in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, TIS Inc., SORUN 
CORPORATION and UFIT Co., Ltd, all consolidated subsidiaries of the Company, were 
merged into TIS Inc. on April 1, 2011. 

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with 
respect to the year ended March 31, 2011 are presented solely for convenience.  Our audit 
also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, 
such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 2. 

June 21, 2011 

2

IT Holdings Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011 

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars) 

(Note 2) 
Assets    
Current assets:    

Cash and deposits (Notes 4 and 24) ¥ 36,729 ¥ 47,193 $ 441,724 
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 4) 59,040 62,620 710,046 
Lease receivables and investments in finance leases 

(Notes 4 and 22) 8,711 7,591 104,757 
Marketable securities (Notes 3, 4 and 24) 301 322 3,624 
Inventories (Note 15) 9,047 9,263 108,802 
Deferred tax assets (Note 9) 7,742 8,528 93,101 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7,085 6,649 85,210 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (200) (198) (2,403) 

Total current assets 128,455 141,968 1,544,861 

Property and equipment: 

   

Buildings and structures (Note 7) 60,230 52,332 724,354 
Machinery and vehicles (Note 7) 5,010 4,851 60,250 
Leased assets (Note 22) 2,540 2,476 30,524 
Land (Notes 6 and 7) 22,469 22,631 270,219 
Construction in progress 72 4,106 873 
Others 5,137 5,603 61,779 

Total property and equipment (Note 12) 95,458 91,999 1,148,017 

Intangible assets: 

   

Goodwill (Note 5) 5,516 6,741 66,341 
Others 13,073 12,389 157,222 

Total intangible assets 18,589 19,130 223,563 

Investments and other assets: 

   

Investments in securities (Notes 3 and 4) 31,795 34,594 382,381 
Deferred tax assets (Note 9) 8,115 6,995 97,599 
Others 20,996 21,171 252,502 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,332) (2,780) (28,045) 

Total investments and other assets 58,574 59,980 704,437 
Total assets ¥301,076 ¥313,077 $3,620,878 
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3

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011 

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars) 

(Note 2) 
Liabilities and net assets    
Current liabilities:    

Short-term bank loans (Notes 4 and 7) ¥  479  ¥ 21,589 $  5,757 
Current portion of long-term bank loans (Notes 4 and 7) 14,321 13,306 172,239 
Current portion of bonds (Notes 4 and 8) 7,500 4,000 90,198 
Notes and accounts payable (Note 4) 14,944 14,954 179,725 
Income taxes payable 3,402 2,115 40,907 
Accrued bonuses to employees 11,041 10,820 132,784 
Other allowances 465 374 5,589 
Others (Note 9) 20,939 19,098 251,820 

Total current liabilities 73,091 86,256 879,019 
Non-current liabilities:    

Bonds (Notes 4 and 8) 100 7,600 1,203 
Long-term bank loans (Notes 4 and 7) 55,054 45,151 662,110 
Lease obligations 3,982 3,915 47,886 
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 9) 675 694 8,117 
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation (Note 6) 993 993 11,944 
Accrued retirement benefits to employees (Note 10) 11,509 10,673 138,413 
Accrued retirement benefits to directors 244 470 2,940 
Others 4,318 2,250 51,925 

Total non-current liabilities 76,875 71,746 924,538 
Total liabilities 149,966 158,002 1,803,557 

Net assets: 
   

Shareholders’ equity (Notes 20, 21 and 23):    
Common stock, without par value: 10,001 10,001 120,279 
Additional paid-in capital 86,788 85,208 1,043,753 
Retained earnings 47,298 44,088 568,830 
Less treasury stock, at cost (24) (58) (295) 

Total shareholders’ equity 144,063 139,239 1,732,567 
Accumulated other comprehensive income:    

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 1,730 1,183 20,802 
Revaluation of land (Note 6) (1,842) (1,842) (22,150) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments (304) (179) (3,655) 

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (416) (838) (5,003) 
Subscription rights 29 19 351 
Minority interests 7,434 16,655 89,406 

Total net assets 151,110 155,075 1,817,321 
Total liabilities and net assets ¥301,076 ¥313,077 $3,620,878 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

4

IT Holdings Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Income 

Year ended March 31, 
2011 2010 2011 

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars) 

(Note 2) 

Net sales ¥323,173 ¥313,856 $3,886,632 
Cost of sales (Note 16) 261,146 254,827 3,140,661 

Gross profit 62,027 59,029 745,971 

Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 16) 49,209 43,033 591,811 
Operating income 12,818 15,996 154,160 

Other income (expenses):    
Interest and dividend income 615 609 7,402 
Interest expenses (1,023) (1,057) (12,306) 
Amortization of negative goodwill 86 88 1,041 
Real estate rental income 274 302 3,293 
Gain on sales of investments in securities 1,783 1,116 21,440 
Loss on disposal and sale of fixed assets 

(Notes 17 and 18) (610) (634) (7,339) 
Impairment loss (Note 19) (1,074) (2,083) (12,920) 
Valuation loss on investments in securities (681) (175) (8,193) 
Gain on negative goodwill 3,005 - 36,139 
Loss on adjustment for change in accounting for asset 

retirement obligations (2,199) (-)  26,449 
Merger cost (2,325) (-)  27,955 
Others, net (524) (170) (6,301) 

(2,673) (2,004) (32,148) 
Income before income taxes and minority interests 10,145 13,992 122,012 

Income taxes (Note 9):    
Current 4,383 2,774 52,706 
Deferred (309) 2,977 (3,714) 

4,074 5,751 48,992 

Income before minority interests 6,071 8,241 73,020 
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries  

(86) (581) (1,039) 
Net income ¥ 5,985 ¥    7,660 $ 71,981 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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5

IT Holdings Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Year ended March 31,  
2011 2011 

(Millions of 
yen) 

(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars) 

(Note 2) 
Income before minority interests ¥6,071 $73,020 
Other comprehensive income: 

329  Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 3,954 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 

（171） （2,056）
 Share of other comprehensive income accounted for by 

the equity method （8） （97）

Total other comprehensive income 150 1,801 
Comprehensive income ¥6,221 $74,821 
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 

 Shareholders of IT Holdings Corporation  ¥6,407 $77,056 
 Minority interests (186) (2,235) 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

6

IT Holdings Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 

For the year ended March 31, 2011
Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Common 
stock 

Additional
paid-in 
capital

Retained
earnings 

Treasury 
stock 

Total 
shareholders’

equity

Net
unrealized

gains (losses) 
on other 
securities

Revaluation
of land 

Foreign 
currency 

translation
adjustments

Total 
accumulated 

comprehensive 
income 

Subscription
rights 

Minority 
interests

Total 
net assets 

(Millions of yen)
Balance as of March 31, 2010 ¥10,001 ¥85,208 ¥44,088 ¥     (58) ¥139,239 ¥ 1,183 ¥(1,842) ¥(179) ¥   (838) ¥19 ¥16,655 ¥155,075 
Changes during the year

New stock issue  1,610 1,610  1,610 
Dividends from surplus (2,780) (2,780)  (2,780) 
Net income 5,985 5,985  5,985 
Acquisition of treasury stock (4) (4)  (4) 
Sales of treasury stock  (30) 38 8  8
Increase due to merger   5 5  5
Items other than changes in 

shareholders’ equity  547 (125) 422 10 (9,221) (8,789) 
Total change for the year - 1,580 3,210 34 4,824 547 - (125) 422 10 (9,221) (3,965) 

Balance as of March 31, 2011 ¥10,001 ¥86,788 ¥47,298 ¥     (24) ¥144,063 ¥1,730 ¥(1,842) ¥(304) ¥   (416) ¥29 ¥ 7,434 ¥151,110 

Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive income  

Common 
stock 

Additional
paid-in 
capital

Retained
earnings 

Treasury 
stock 

Total 
shareholders’

equity

Net
unrealized

gains (losses) 
on other 
securities

Revaluation
of land 

Foreign 
currency 

translation
adjustments

Total 
accumulated 

comprehensive 
income 

Subscription
rights 

Minority 
interests

Total 
net assets 

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2)

Balance as of March 31, 2010 $120,279 $1,024,746 $530,227 $(694) $1,674,558 $14,222 $(22,150) $(2,150) $(10,078) $ 225 $200,300 $1,865,005 
Changes during the year

New stock issue  19,368 19,368  19,368 
Dividends from surplus  (33,438) (33,438)  (33,438) 
Net income  71,981 71,981  71,981 
Acquisition of treasury stock  (51) (51)  (51) 
Sales of treasury stock  (361) 450 89  89 
Increase due to merger  60 60  60 
Items other than changes in 

shareholders’ equity 6,580 (1,505) 5,075 126 (110,894) (105,693) 
Total change for the year - 19,007 38,603 399 58,009 6,580 - (1,505) 5,075 126 (110,894) (47,684) 

Balance as of March 31, 2011 $120,279 $1,043,753 $568,830 $(295) $1,732,567 $ 20,802 $(22,150) $(3,655) $  (5,003) $ 351 $  89,406 $1,817,321 

7

IT Holdings Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2010
Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Common 
stock 

Additional
paid-in 
capital

Retained
earnings 

Treasury 
stock 

Total 
shareholders’

equity

Net
unrealized

gains (losses) 
on other 
securities

Revaluation
of land 

Foreign 
currency 

translation
adjustments

Total 
accumulated 

comprehensive 
income 

Subscription
rights 

Minority 
interests

Total 
net assets 

(Millions of yen)

Balance as of March 31, 2009 ¥10,000 ¥86,321 ¥40,186 ¥(2,354) ¥134,153 ¥(1,118) ¥(1,842) ¥(139) ¥(3,099) ¥  8 ¥15,154 ¥146,216 
New stock issue 1 1 2  2
Dividends from surplus  (3,758) (3,758)  (3,758) 
Net income  7,660 7,660  7,660 
Acquisition of treasury stock  (4) (4)  (4) 
Sales of treasury stock  (1,114) 2,300 1,186  1,186 
Items other than changes in 

shareholders’ equity 2,301 (40) 2,261 11 1,501 3,773 
Total change for the year 1 (1,113) 3,902 2,296 5,086 2,301 (40) 2,261 11 1,501 8,859 

Balance as of March 31, 2010 ¥10,001 ¥85,208 ¥44,088 ¥     (58) ¥139,239 ¥ 1,183 ¥(1,842) ¥(179) ¥   (838) ¥19 ¥16,655 ¥155,075 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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IT Holdings Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presenting the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 IT Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their 
books of account in conformity with the financial accounting standards of Japan; its 
foreign subsidiaries maintain their books of account in conformity with those of their 
countries of domicile. 

 The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been compiled from the 
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Company as required under the 
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan, and have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different 
in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards.  

(b) Principles of consolidation 

 The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company and its wholly or majority-owned subsidiaries (together, the “Group”). The 
number of consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, was 53 and 55, 
respectively. 

 Certain subsidiaries are consolidated using their financial statements as of December 
31, their fiscal year-end, and necessary adjustments have been made for any material 
transactions during the period from January 1 to March 31. 

 All significant intercompany balances and transactions among the Group have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

 All assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries are stated at fair market value on 
the date of acquisition of control. 

 Investments in one nonconsolidated subsidiary (two in 2010) and nine affiliated 
companies (eleven in 2010) are accounted for by the equity method. 

(c) Foreign currency translation 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into 
yen at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date, except for assets and 
liabilities hedged by forward foreign exchange contracts. 

 All revenues and expenses in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange 
when such transactions were made, and differences arising from the translation are 
credited or charged to income. 

8

IT Holdings Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year ended March 31,
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars) 

(Note 2)
Cash flows from operating activities: 
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 10,145 ¥ 13,992 $ 122,012
Depreciation 12,308 11,978 148,023
Impairment loss 1,074 2,083 12,920
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 558 622 6,712
Valuation loss on investments in securities 681 175 8,193
Amortization of goodwill 1,902 1,390 22,872
Increase in accrued bonuses to employees 211 535 2,531
Decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts (446) (74) (5,369)
Increase in accrued retirement benefits to employees 836 852 10,056
Interest and dividend income (615) (609) (7,402)
Interest expenses 1,023 1,058 12,307
Decrease in notes and accounts receivable 3,173 5,908 38,161
Decrease in inventories 226 8,174 2,714
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 1,047 (5,949) 12,590
Gain on negative goodwill (3,005) – (36,139)
Loss on adjustment for change in accounting for asset retirement 
obligations 2,199 – 26,449

Others, net (651) (4,138) (7,832)
Subtotal 30,666 35,997 368,798

Interest and dividend income received 627 606 7,549
Interest expenses paid (1,058) (1,075) (12,726)
Income taxes paid (2,998) (4,127) (36,057)
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,237 31,401 327,564
Cash flows from investing activities: 
Deposit of time deposits – (1,553) –
Repayment of time deposits – 4,374 –
Acquisition of property and equipment (10,510) (9,843) (126,395)
Acquisition of intangible assets (6,312) (5,003) (75,910)
Acquisition of investments in securities – (4,225) –
Proceeds from sale of investments in securities 4,197 1,333 50,476
Payment of guarantee deposits (2,068)         – (24,872)
Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries (4,313)         – (51,877)
Payments on newly consolidated subsidiary (Note 24) – (10,917) –
Other, net 49 107 592
Net cash used in investing activities (18,957) (25,727) (227,986)
Cash flows from financing activities: 
(Decrease) increase in short-term bank loans, net (21,266) 15,505 (255,758)
Proceeds from long-term bank loans 25,495 15,800 306,615
Repayment of long-term bank loans (14,681) (15,942) (176,557)
Redemption of bonds (4,000) (5,100) (48,106)
Acquisition of treasury stock (4) (4) (51)
Sale of treasury stock – 1,186 –
Dividends paid (2,781) (3,757) (33,438)
Dividends paid to minority interests (459) (970) (5,521)
Other, net (1,060) (579) (12,747)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (18,756) 6,139 (225,563)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (45) 11 (542) 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (10,521) 11,824 (126,527)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 46,988 35,105 565,097
Increase due to merger 26 59 310
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 24) ¥ 36,493 ¥ 46,988 $ 438,880

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued) 

 Assets and liabilities of the foreign consolidated subsidiaries are translated into yen at 
the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date, and differences arising from 
the translation are included in foreign currency translation adjustments or in minority 
interests of net assets. 

(d) Cash equivalents 

 The Group considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or 
less, when purchased, as cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows. 

(e) Securities 

 Securities held by the Group are classified into two categories: held-to-maturity or 
available-for-sale securities. Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortized cost. 
Available-for-sale securities with a determinable market value are stated at fair value 
with any changes in unrealized holding gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, 
included directly in net assets. Available-for-sale securities without a determinable 
market value are stated at cost. Cost of securities sold is determined by the 
moving-average method. 

(f)  Derivatives 

    Derivative instruments are stated at market value as assets or liabilities. 

(g) Inventories

Merchandise and finished goods are stated at cost, determined mainly by the first-in, 
first-out method. Work in process is stated at cost, determined by the specific-cost 
method. Raw materials and supplies are stated at cost, determined mainly by last 
purchase cost method. 

 However, the Group provides inventory write-downs determined primarily by their 
future collectability. 

(h)  Property and equipment

Buildings and structures are depreciated principally by the straight-line method; 
machinery and equipment are depreciated principally by the declining-balance 
method; and both methods are based on the estimated useful lives of the assets.  

11 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 (i)  Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated 
useful lives, except for computer software. 

Expenses related to development activities of computer software, which are included in 
intangible assets, are amortized as follows: 

i) Computer software for sale 

 Capitalized costs are amortized at the higher of the amount based on the ratio of 
the current year sales quantity to the total of estimated sales quantity over the 
estimated sales period (three years) or the amount calculated by the straight-line 
method over the remaining economic life.  

ii) Computer software for internal use 

 Capitalized costs are amortized by the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful life of the software, generally two to five years.

(J)  Leased assets (as lessee) 

 Leased assets on finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership are 
depreciated over the useful life of assets, which equals the lease term, by the 
straight-line method. Finance lease transactions which were contracted before April 1, 
2008, are accounted for as operating leases. 

(k) Accounting for leases (as lessee and lessor) 

 Finance lease transactions other than those in which ownership is fully transferred to 
the lessee are accounted for in a similar manner to ordinary sales and purchase 
transactions.  

(l) Impairment losses of long-lived assets 

The Group reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Any 
decrease in the book value of long-lived assets is recorded as an impairment loss. 

 The Group bases its grouping for assessing impairment losses of long-lived assets on 
their business segments, area and service descriptions. However, lease properties and 
assets for specified projects are grouped separately.

(m) Allowance for doubtful accounts

An allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the appropriate estimate of probable losses  
inherent in the accounts receivable balance. 

 The allowance is determined based on known troubled accounts, historical experience, 
and other currently available evidence. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(t) Amortization of goodwill and negative goodwill 

 Goodwill and negative goodwill were amortized by the straight-line method over 
periods not exceeding 20 years. As for business combinations completed on and after 
April 1, 2010, goodwill is amortized by the straight-line method over a period not 
exceeding 20 years and negative goodwill is changed to income when incurred. 

(u) Revenues and costs recognition of producing ordered software 

Revenues and costs of construction contracts of which the percentage of completion 
can be reliably estimated, are recognized by the percentage-of-completion method. 
The percentage of completion is calculated at the cost incurred as a percentage of the 
estimated total cost. The completed-contract method continues to be applied for 
contracts for which the percentage of completion cannot be reliably estimated. 

(v)  Adoption of accounting standard for asset retirement obligations 

Effective April 1, 2010, the Group adopted “Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement 
Obligations” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) Statement No. 18 issued 
on March 31, 2008) and “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement 
Obligations” (ASBJ Guidance No. 21 issued on March 31, 2008). The effect of this 
change was to decrease operating income and income before income taxes and 
minority interests for the year ended March 31, 2011 by ¥277 million ($3,336 
thousand) and ¥2,477 million ($29,785 thousand), respectively. Adoption of the 
accounting standard caused an increase in asset retirement obligations during the year 
of ¥2,554 million ($30,721 thousand). 

(w) Adoption of accounting standard for business combinations and other accounting 
standards

Effective April 1, 2010, the Group adopted the following accounting standards and 
guidance issued on December 26, 2008: “Accounting Standard for Business 
Combinations” (ASBJ Statement No. 21), “Accounting Standard for Consolidated 
Financial Statements” (ASBJ Statement No. 22) “Partial Amendments to Accounting 
Standard for Research and Development Costs” (ASBJ Statement No. 23), “Revised 
Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Statement No. 7), “Revised 
Accounting Standard for Equity Method of Accounting for Investments” (ASBJ 
Statement No. 16), “Revised Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business 
Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Guidance 
No.10)

(x) Presentation of comprehensive income 

Effective April 1 , 2010, the Group adopted “Accounting Standard for Presentation of 
Comprehensive Income” (ASBJ Statement No. 25, issued on June 30, 2010). The 
corresponding figures for the year ended March 31, 2010, were as follows: 

12 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(n) Accrued bonuses to employees

Accrued bonuses to employees are recognized at the estimated amount to be paid for  
services rendered prior to the fiscal year-end. 

(o) Accrued retirement benefits to employees

Accrued retirement benefits for employees are recorded at an amount calculated based  
on the retirement benefit obligation and the fair value of the pension plan assets as of  
the balance sheet date.  

 Actuarial gain or loss is amortized from the year following recognition by the 
straight-line method within the average remaining service period (mainly five to 15 
years) of employees. Prior service costs are mainly charged to income when incurred. 

(p) Accrued retirement benefits to directors

Certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries set aside a provision to cover payment of 
directors’ retirement benefits. The estimated amount to be paid is recorded based on 
internal regulations. 

(q) Income taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the temporary differences between financial 
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. These deferred taxes are measured by 
applying the enacted tax rates and laws, which will be in effect when the differences 
are expected to reverse. 

(r) Distribution of retained earnings 

Dividends and other distributions of retained earnings are resolved by the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting held subsequent to the end of the fiscal year. Distributions are 
reflected in the consolidated financial statements for the following fiscal year. 

(s) Hedge accounting 

 The Group utilizes hedge accounting primarily to manage interest rate risk. Generally, 
under deferral hedging, unrealized gains or losses are deferred as a component of net 
assets. The Group also utilizes exceptional methods, as permitted when fulfilling 
certain conditions for interest rate swaps. 

 A formal assessment is made periodically on an ongoing basis to determine whether 
the derivative used in hedging activities is effective by comparing cumulative cash 
flow fluctuations of both the hedge method and target, except for interest rate swaps 
accounted for by exceptional methods. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 

 Shareholders of IT Holdings Corporation ¥ 9,921 
 Minority interests 741
Total comprehensive income ¥10,662

Other comprehensive income: 

¥ 2,397    Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 

Foreign currency translation adjustments 17 
 Share of other comprehensive income accounted for 

by the equity method 8 
Total other comprehensive income ¥ 2,422 

2. U.S. Dollar Amounts 

Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the convenience of non-Japanese readers. A 
rate of ¥83.15 = US$1, the approximate rate of exchange prevailing on March 31, 2011, has 
been used in translation. The inclusion of such amounts is not intended to imply that 
Japanese yen have been or could be readily converted, realized or settled in U.S. dollars at 
that or at any other rate. 

3. Marketable Securities and Investments in Securities 

(a) The Group held no held-to maturity debt securities as of March 31, 2011 and 2010. 

(b) Acquisition cost, book value and unrealized gains or losses of available-for-sale 
securities with fair value as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, were as follows: 

March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010 

Description 
Acquisition 

cost 

Book value 
(Fair market

value) 

Unrealized
gains 

(losses) 
Acquisition 

cost 

Book value 
(Fair market 

value) 

Unrealized
gains 

(losses) 
(Millions of yen) 

Market exceeding 
cost: 
Shares ¥ 8,513 ¥3,019 ¥5,495 ¥10,127 ¥4,830 ¥5,297 
Corporate bonds 255 250 5 457 450 7 
Other 60 59 1 – – –

8,828 3,328 5,500 10,584 5,280 5,304 
Market not 
exceeding cost: 

      

Shares 3,068 3,485 (417) 2,443 3,117 (674) 
Bonds 126 132 (6) 210 228 (18) 
Other 302 381 (79) 321 391 (70) 

3,496 3,997 (502) 2,974 3,736 (762) 
Total ¥12,324 ¥7,325 ¥4,999 ¥13,558 ¥9,016 ¥4,542 

15 

3. Marketable Securities and Investments in Securities (continued) 

March 31, 2011 

Description 
Acquisition 

cost 

Book value 
(Fair market

value) 

Unrealized
gains 

(losses) 
(Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Market exceeding 
cost: 
Shares $102,385 $36,302 $66,083 
Corporate bonds 3,066 3,007 59 
Other 720 713 7

106,171 40,022 66,149 
Market not 
exceeding cost: 

   

Shares 36,895 41,913 (5,018) 
Bonds 1,515 1,589 (74) 
Other 3,636 4,575 (939) 

42,046 48,077 (6,031) 
Total $148,217 $88,099 $60,118 

(c) Available-for-sale securities sold during this fiscal year 

Year Ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)
Proceeds from sales of 

available-for-sale securities ¥6,777 ¥2,377 $81,503 
Realized gain 1,783 1,108 21,440 
Realized loss (26) (4) (316) 

(d) Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities amounted to ¥663 million ($7,975 
thousand) and ¥134 million for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. 

4. Financial Instruments 

(a) Overview of utilization of financial instruments 

(i) Management policies 

 The Group procures necessary funds, principally from banks, under its capital 
investment plans. The Group invests excess funds mainly in secure financial 
assets. Further, the Group raises short-term capital through bank borrowings. 
Derivatives are utilized for hedging interest rate fluctuation risks, not for trading 
or speculative purposes. 
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4. Financial Instruments (continued) 

(ii) Contents of financial instruments and related risks 

 Notes and accounts receivable are exposed to credit risks in relation to the 
Group's customers. Investments in securities are exposed to market risk. Those 
securities are mainly equity shares issued by companies with which the Group 
has business relationships.  

 Notes and accounts payable are mainly due within one year. Short-term bank 
loans are procured mainly for operations. Long-term bank loans are procured 
mainly for capital investments and to secure a stable fund position. A portion of 
long-term bank loans, bearing interest at variable rates, is exposed to interest rate 
fluctuation risk. However, to reduce such risk, certain subsidiaries utilize interest 
rate swap transactions as a hedging instrument. Details of interest rate swaps are 
described in Note 1(s) above. 

(iii)  Risk management for financial instruments 

1. Credit risk (customer default risk) control 

 In accordance with the internal policies of the Group for managing credit 
risk arising from receivables, the Group monitors the creditworthiness of 
customers periodically, tracking due dates and outstanding balances in order 
to recognize and reduce doubtful accounts in a timely manner.  

 The Group also believes that the credit risk of derivatives is insignificant as 
it enters into derivative transactions only with financial institutions that have 
a sound credit profile. 

2. Market risk (interest fluctuation risk) control 

 Certain consolidated subsidiaries utilize interest rate swap transactions to 
hedge interest fluctuation risks on long-term bank loans. 

 Market prices of investments in securities and the financial position of 
issuers are reviewed periodically. In addition, the Group continuously 
evaluates the adequacy of withholding those securities, considering the 
relationship with the issuers. 

 Controls and execution of derivative transactions are carried under the 
authorization of the boards of directors and in conformity with the internal 
rules of each company of the Group. The performance of transactions is 
reported semiannually to the boards of directors. 

3. Liquidity risk on fund procurement (nonfulfillment risk on due date) 

 Based on the report from each division, the Group prepares and updates its 
cash flow plans on a timely basis to manage liquidity risk. 

17 

4. Financial Instruments (continued) 

(iv) Explanation of market fair values 

 The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market price, if 
available. If there is no market price, fair value is estimated reasonably. 

 In addition, the notional amounts of derivatives in the following “fair market 
values” of derivative transactions are not necessarily indicative of the actual 
market risk involved in derivative transactions. 

(b) Fair market value of financial instruments 

 The carrying value of financial instruments on the consolidated balance sheet, fair 
market values, and differences as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, are shown below. 
Securities for which it is extremely difficult to determine the fair value are excluded 
from the table. 

As of March 31, 2011 
Balance

sheet 

Fair
market 
values Difference

Balance
sheet 

Fair
market 
values Difference

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Cash and deposits ¥  36,729 ¥-36,729 ¥      – $  441,724 $--441,724 $       – 

Notes and accounts 
receivable 59,040 710,046

Allowance for doubtful 
accounts  (13) (159)

   Net amount* 59,027 59,021 (6) 709,887 709,808 (79)
Lease receivables and 
investments in finance 
leases 8,711    104,758     
Lease receivables and 
allowance for doubtful 
accounts  (23) (275)

Net amount* 8,688 8,756 68 104,483 105,307 824 
Marketable securities 
and investments in 
securities 12,985 12,767 (218) 156,162 153,545 (2,617)

Total assets ¥117,429 ¥117,273 ¥(156) $1,412,256 $1,410,384 $(1,872)
     

Notes and accounts 
payable ¥  14,944 ¥-14,944 ¥     – $  179,725 $--179,725 $       – 

Short-term bank loans 479 479 – 5,757 5,757 – 
Bonds ** 7,600 7,598 (2) 91,401 91,383 (18)
Long-term bank 
loans ** 69,376 69,523 147 834,349 836,114 1,765 

Total liabilities ¥ 92,399 ¥ 92,544 ¥  145 $1,111,232 $1,112,979 $ 1,747 
     
Derivative transactions ¥          – ¥          – ¥     – $            -– $            – $      – 

* The amounts do not include the allowance provided for the individual receivables.  
** The amounts include a current portion of bonds or long-term bank loans. 
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4. Financial Instruments (continued) 

As of March 31, 2010 
Balance

sheet 

Fair
market 
values Difference

(Millions of yen) 

Cash and deposits ¥  47,193 ¥  47,193 ¥    – 
Notes and accounts 
receivable 62,620 

Allowance for doubtful 
accounts  (25)  

Net amount* 62,595 62,592 (3) 
Lease receivables and 
investments in finance 
leases 7,591 

Allowance for doubtful 
accounts  (17)

Net amount* 7,574 7,548 (26) 
Marketable securities 
and investments in 
securities 14,273 14,304 31 

Total assets ¥131,635 ¥131,637 ¥    2 
   

Notes and accounts 
payable ¥  14,954 ¥  14,954 ¥    – 

Short-term bank loans 21,589 21,589 – 
Bonds ** 11,600 11,601 1 
Long-term bank 
loans ** 58,457 58,577 120 

Total liabilities ¥106,600 ¥106,721 ¥121 
   
Derivative transactions ¥           – ¥           – ¥    – 

* The amounts do not include the allowance provided for the individual receivables.  
** The amounts include a current portion of bonds or long-term bank loans. 

(i) Computation of fair market values of financial instruments, securities and 
derivative transactions 

Assets:

Book values of cash and deposits approximate fair market values as they are 
settled in a short period of time. 

Fair market values of notes and accounts receivable, investments in finance leases 
and leased assets are recorded as present values based on the sum of face values 
that have been categorized according to length of term, discounted by an interest 
rate determined taking into account the length of maturity and credit risk. 

As for marketable securities and investments in securities, fair market values of 
equity shares are based on quoted market prices. The fair values of debt securities 
are based on either quoted market prices or prices provided by the financial 
institutions. The details of securities by holding purpose are described in Note 3 
above.
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4. Financial Instruments (continued) 

(b) Fair market value of financial instruments (continued) 

Liabilities: 

Book values of notes and accounts payable and short-term bank loans 
approximate fair market values as they are settled in a short period of time. 

Book values of bonds with variable interest approximate fair market values since 
the market interest rate is reflected on a timely basis and the credit rating of the 
Group has not changed significantly since issuing the bonds. 

Fair market values of bonds with fixed interest are recorded as present values 
based on the aggregate of principal and interest discounted by an interest rate 
determined taking into account the length of maturity of each bond and credit 
risk. 

Book values of long-term bank loans with variable interest rates approximate fair 
market values since the market interest rate is reflected on a timely basis and the 
credit rating of the Group has not changed significantly since taking out the loans. 

Fair market values of long-term bank loans with fixed interest rates are based on 
the present values of the total of principal and interest discounted by an interest 
rate to be applied if similar new borrowings were to be made. A part of long-term 
bank loans, bearing interest at variable rates, is accounted for by interest swap 
exceptional treatment. Its fair market values are based on the aggregate of 
principal and interest in conjunction with the exceptional treatment as a package, 
discounted by an interest rate to be applied if similar new borrowings were to be 
made. 

Derivative transactions: 

Fair market values of derivatives accounted for by interest swap exceptional 
treatments are included in fair market values of long-term bank loans, as those are 
accounted for inclusively in long-term bank loans. Interest-related derivative 
transactions accounted for by hedge accounting as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 
were as follows: 

Hedge accounting Interest swap exceptional treatments 
Transaction type Interest rate swaps: variable receipt/fixed payment 
Hedged item Long-term bank loans 

Year ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)
Total contract amount ¥   2,566 ¥  6,690 $  30,863 
Contract amount over one year 1,300 3,306 15,634 
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4. Financial Instruments (continued) 

(b) Fair market value of financial instruments (continued) 

(ii) Financial instruments without fair market values 

 The table below does not include financial instruments for which it is extremely 
difficult to determine the fair value. Their book values as of March 31, 2011 and 
2010, are as follows: 

Year ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011

Description
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)
Unlisted shares ¥   17,966 ¥  19,603  $  216,072 
Equity in investment partnership 814 893 9,787 
Money market funds and other 331 147 3,984 

(c) Expected maturities of monetary receivables and marketable securities and 
investments in securities with maturities as of March 31, 2010 

As of March 31, 2011
Within 

one year
2 to 5 
years

6 to 10 
   years **

Within  
one year 

2 to 5 
years

6 to 10 
   years **

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Cash and deposits ¥36,716 ¥       – ¥    – $   441,566 $         – $       –
Notes and accounts receivable 58,985 56 – 709,374 671 –
Lease receivables and 
investments in finance leases 2,834 5,747 129 34,082 69,120 1,556

Marketable securities and 
investments in securities*:     
Corporate bonds – 25 250 – 301 3,007
Other – – – – – –

Total ¥98,535 ¥5,828 ¥379 $1,185,022 $70,092 $4,563

* These securities are available-for-sale securities with maturity dates. 
** There were no amounts to mature after 10 years. 

As of March 31, 2010
Within 

one year
2 to 5 
years

6 to 10 
   years **

(Millions of yen)

Cash and deposits ¥  47,177 ¥       – ¥    – 
Notes and accounts receivable 62,526 93 – 
Lease receivables and 
investments in finance leases 2,312 5,207 72 
Marketable securities and 
investments in securities *:  
Corporate bonds 215 25 250 
Other 5 83 –

Total ¥112,235 ¥5,408 ¥322 

* These securities are available-for-sale securities with maturity dates. 
** There were no amounts to mature  after 10 years. 
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5. Goodwill and Negative Goodwill 

The amount of goodwill in intangible assets is indicated after offsetting goodwill and 
negative goodwill. The gross amounts as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, were as follows: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Goodwill ¥5,552 ¥6,863 $66,766 
Negative goodwill (36) (122) (425)
Net amount ¥5,516 ¥6,741 $66,341

6.  Revaluation of Land 

Pursuant to the “Law Concerning the Revaluation of Land” (the “Law”), land used for the 
Group’s business operations was revalued on March 31, 2002. The income tax effect of the 
difference between the book value and the revalued amount has been presented under 
liabilities as “deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation” and the remaining balance 
presented under net assets as “revaluation of land” in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheet. 

Revaluation of land was determined based on the official prices published by the 
Commissioner of the National Tax Authorities in accordance with Paragraph 4, Article 2 of 
the “Enforcement Ordinance Concerning Land Revaluation,” with certain necessary 
adjustments. 
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7.  Short-Term Bank Loans and Long-Term Bank Loans 

Short-term bank loans and long-term banks loans as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, consisted 
of the following: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Short-term bank loans:    
Short-term bank loans, with an average 
interest rate of 0.59% for 2011 ¥   479 ¥ 21,589 $   5,757 

Long-term bank loans:    
Loans principally from banks and other 
financial institutions, with an average 
interest rate of 1.11% for 2011 ¥ 69,376 ¥ 58,457 $ 834,348 

Less current portion of long-term debt (14,322) (13,306) (172,239)
¥ 55,054 ¥ 45,151 $ 662,110 

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term bank loans due within five years subsequent 
to March 31, 2011 and 2010, were as follows: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

Year ending March 31, (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

2011 ¥     – ¥ 13,306 $     – 
2012 14,322 16,035 172,239 
2013 14,781 15,161 177,761 
2014 28,461 10,841 342,284 
2015 9,068 3,114 109,052 
2016 2,745 – 33,013 

The assets pledged as collateral for short-term bank loans and long-term bank loans, 
amounting to ¥10 million ($120 thousand) and ¥1,271 million ($15,280 thousand), 
respectively, as of March 31, 2011, and ¥45 million and ¥1,738 million, respectively, as of 
March 31, 2010 were as follows: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Buildings and structures ¥13,594 ¥14,234 $163,486 
Machinery and equipment – 39 – 
Land 3,331 3,331 40,061 
Other 1 – 12

¥16,926 ¥17,604 $203,559
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8.  Bonds 

Bonds as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, consisted of the following: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

0.78% Unsecured bonds, due 2012 ¥ 7,500 ¥  7,500 $ 90,198 
1.26% Unsecured bonds, due 2010 – 4,000 – 
0.84% Unsecured bonds, due 2012 100 100 1,203
 7,600 11,600 91,401 
Less current portion of long-term debt (7,500) (4,000) (90,198)

¥  100 ¥  7,600 $  1,203 

The aggregate future maturities of bonds for the next five years subsequent to March 31, 
2011 and 2010, were as follows:  

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

Year ending March 31, (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

2011 ¥    – ¥4,000 $    – 
2012 7,500 7,500 90,198 
2013 100 100 1,203 
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9. Income Taxes 

Income taxes applicable to the Group comprised corporation tax, inhabitants’ taxes, and 
enterprise tax which, in the aggregate, resulted in a statutory tax rate of 40.7% for 2011 and 
2010. Income taxes of the foreign subsidiaries are based generally on the tax rates 
applicable in their countries. 

(a) The reconciliations for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, are not presented 
herein because the difference between the statutory tax rate and effective tax rate was 
less than 5%. 

(b) The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2011 
and 2010, were as follows: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011 

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Deferred tax assets:    
Accrued enterprise tax ¥     372 ¥    271 $  4,480 
Non-deductible portion of allowance for 

doubtful accounts 812 662 9,769 
Non-deductible portion of accrued bonuses 

to employees 4,465 4,361 53,698 
Non-deductible portion of depreciation 886 1,241 10,657 
Impairment losses 665 460 7,995 
Tax loss carried forward 5,538 6,476 66,601 
Accrued retirement benefits to employees 5,547 5,082 66,706 
Write down of investments in shares 1,421 1,630 17,092 
Write down of inventories 805 550 9,678 
Asset retirement obligations 1,184 – 14,239 
Unrealized gains 1,490 1,305 17,915 
Others, net 3,001 2,219 36,091 
 26,186 24,257 314,921 
Less – Valuation allowance (6,452) (5,255) (77,595) 

Total deferred tax assets ¥ 19,734 ¥ 19,002 $237,326 

Deferred tax liabilities:    
Gain on contribution of securities to pension 

fund ¥   767 ¥--1,072 $  9,229 
Prepaid pension expenses 740 514 8,903 
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 2,673 2,482 32,144 
Asset retirement obligations 296 – 3,554 
Others, net 111 130 1,329 

Total deferred tax liabilities 4,587 4,198 55,159 
Net deferred tax assets ¥15,147 ¥14,804 $182,167 
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9. Income Taxes (continued) 
Deferred income taxes as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, are reflected in the consolidated 
balance sheet under the following line items: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Current assets—Deferred tax assets ¥ 7,741 ¥  8,528 $ 93,101 
Investments and other 

assets—Deferred tax assets 8,115 6,995 97,599 
Current liabilities—Other (34) (25) (416) 
Non-current liabilities—Deferred tax 

liabilities (675) (694) (8,117)
Net deferred tax assets ¥15,147 ¥14,804 $182,167

10. Retirement Benefits 

(a) Outline of retirement benefit plans 

 The Company and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries have pension plans, 
including a corporation pension plan based on the defined benefit pension law, a 
defined contribution pension plan, a tax-qualified pension plan, and an unfunded 
defined benefit plan with lump-sum payment.  

 Certain consolidated subsidiaries that participate in a mutual aid contract for 
retirement allowances are excluded from the calculation of the projected benefit 
obligation.

 In addition, certain consolidated subsidiaries that participate in a welfare pension fund 
plan involving other affiliates are excluded from the calculation of the projected 
obligation because it is extremely difficult to make a reasonable estimate. 

(b) The following tables set forth the funded and accrued status of the plans, and the 
amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, 
for the Group’s retirement benefit plans: 

March 31 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Projected benefit obligation ¥(45,481) ¥(43,513) $(546,977) 
Plan assets 27,105 26,144 325,977
Unfunded retirement benefits (18,376) (17,369) (221,000) 
Unrecognized net actuarial differences 10,194 10,917 122,596 
Unrecognized net prior service costs (1,689) (2,177) (20,306)
Net amount (9,871) (8,629) (118,710)
Prepaid pension costs (1,638) (2,044) (19,703)
Accrued retirement benefits to employees ¥(11,509) ¥(10,673) $(138,413)
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10. Retirement Benefits (continued) 

(c) The components of retirement benefit expenses for the year ended March 31, 2011 and 
2010, were as follows: 
Year ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Service costs ¥2,726 ¥2,261 $32,780 
Interest costs 990 846 11,908 
Expected investment return (584) (385) (7,025) 
Recognition of actuarial differences 1,563 1,450 18,795 
Recognition of prior service costs (447) (190) (5,373) 
Contribution to defined contribution 
pension plan 963 998 11,577 

Contribution to welfare pension 
fund plan 455 443 5,472 

Contribution to smaller enterprise 
retirement allowance mutual aid 4 4 52

Net periodic pension expense ¥5,670 ¥5,427 $68,186

(d) Major assumptions used in calculating retirement benefits 

Year ended March 31, 2011 2010

Discount rates 1.8 % to 2.5% 1.8 % to 2.5% 
Rate of expected return on plan assets 1.5% to 3.5% 0.0% to 3.5% 
Method of attributing the projected 
benefits to periods of service Straight-line basis Straight-line basis 

11. Items Related to Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates 

Amounts related to unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates as of March 31, 2011 and 
2010, were as follows: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Investments in securities—stocks ¥2,238 ¥2,887 $26,920 
Investments in securities—other 332 246 3,997 
Investments 242 169 2,905 

12. Depreciation of Property and Equipment 

Accumulated depreciation of property and equipment totaled ¥71,812 million ($863,647 
thousand) and ¥68,858 million as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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13.  Contingent Liability for Guarantee 

The Group was committed to provide guarantees for bank loans to a nonconsolidated 
subsidiary as follows: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Imizu Cable Network, Co., Ltd. ¥72 ¥80 $866
¥72 ¥80 $866

14.  Advanced Depreciation 

Accumulated advanced depreciation including national subsidy deducted from acquired 
buildings and structures totaled ¥77 million ($926 thousand) and ¥78 million as of March 
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

15.  Provision for Losses on Contracts 

A provision for expected operating losses on contract orders amounting to ¥1,045 million 
($12,565 thousand) and ¥1,011 million was set off from work in process inventories as of 
March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

16.  Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 

The main components of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses for the 
years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, were as follows: 

Year ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)

Employees’ salaries ¥17,601 ¥15,089 $211,684 
Accrual of bonuses to employees 1,160 1,166 13,948 
Accrual of allowance for doubtful 

accounts 59 156 709 
Retirement benefits to employees 1,155 936 13,895 
Accrual of retirement benefits to 

directors 44 35 534 

Research and development costs, which are included in cost of sales and selling, general 
and administrative expenses, totaled ¥1,602 million ($19,268 thousand) and ¥913 million 
for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
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17.  Loss on Sales of Property and Equipment 

The composition of loss on sales of property and equipment for the years ended March 31, 
2011 and 2010, respectively, was as follows: 

Year ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)

Buildings and structures ¥34 ¥12 $405 
Machinery and equipment 11 – 133 
Land 2 – 21 
Other 5 0 68

¥52 ¥12 $627

18.  Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment 

The composition of loss on disposal of property and equipment for the years ended March 
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, was as follows: 

Year ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)

Buildings and structures ¥280 ¥440 $3,370 
Machinery and equipment 137 67 1,654 
Software 54 31 644 
Other 87 84 1,044

¥558 ¥622 $6,712
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19.  Impairment Losses 

Impairment losses of long-lived assets for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, were as follows: 

For the year ended 2011 

Purpose Location Category 
Amounts 

(Millions of 
yen)

(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Business property Oartech Inc. (Chuo-ku, 
Tokyo) 

Software, buildings and 
equipment ¥  388  $ 4,669  

Business property TIS Inc. 
(Minato-ku, Tokyo) Software 293 3,519 

Business property  UFIT Co., Ltd. 
(Nishi-ku, Nagoya) 

Software and telephone 
rights 76 919 

Business property 
SORUN
CORPORATION 
(Minato-ku, Tokyo) 

Software 11 133 

Business property NEXWAY Co., Ltd. 
(Minato-ku, Tokyo) Software 124 1,491 

Business property 
TISI (Shanghai) Co., 
Ltd.
(China) 

Machinery and vehicles 40 477 

Other IT Holdings Corporation Goodwill 13 157 

Other  Land, buildings, telephone
rights and other 129 1,555 

Total   ¥1,074 $12,920 

For the year ended 2010 

Purpose Location Category 
Amounts 

(Millions of 
yen)

Business property Keyport Solutions, Inc. 
(Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo) 

Development facilities, 
including software and 
goodwill 

¥   364 

Property for sale NEOAXIS Co., Ltd. 
(Koto-ku, Tokyo) Software 55 

Company condominium Chiba Buildings and land 199 
Dormitory Chiba Buildings and land 176 
Recreation facilities Shizuoka Buildings and land 11 

Business property NEXWAY Co., Ltd. 
(Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo) 

Machinery, equipment 
and software 99 

Other IT Holdings Corporation Goodwill 1,139 

Other  Land, buildings, telephone
rights and other 40 

Total   ¥2,083 
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20. Shareholders’ Equity 

The Company realizes the importance of sustaining a comprehensive and solid distribution 
of earnings to our shareholders through earnings growth, capital efficiency and financial 
soundness.

The Company's basic policy is to distribute dividends twice a year, maintaining a 
consolidated payout ratio of around 30%. Resolutions are made at the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting for the annual dividend, and the Board of Directors’ meeting for the 
interim dividend. 

(a) Types of Stock and Number of Shares 

 The Company issues only common stocks. Number of issued shares and treasury stock 
were changed during the two years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows: 

(Number of shares) 

Shares at 
March 31, 

2009 

Increase 
in the 
Year

Decrease 
in during 
the Year

Shares at 
March 31, 

2010 

Increase 
during the 

Year

Decrease 
during 

the Year 

Shares at 
March 31, 

2011 
Issued shares 
(Notes 1 and 2)

86,372,339 1,580 – 86,373,919 1,415,179 – 87，789，098

Treasury stock 
(Notes 3 to 5)

1,337,013 3,097 1,317,297 22,813 3,778 11,206 15,385

Notes
1. Increase in issued stock of 1,580 was due to exercise of stock option. 
2. Increase in issued stock of 1,415,179 was due to share exchanges, effective April 

1, 2010, by which the Company issued 0.74 shares of common stock of the 
Company for every one share of SORUN CORPORATION’s stock. 

3. Increase in treasury stock by 3,097 and 3,778 shares due to purchase of shares of 
less than one standard unit. 

4. Decrease of 1,317,297 in treasury stock for the year ended March 31, 2010, was 
due to the sale of 1,316,941 shares held by a consolidated subsidiary, and 356 
shares through the sale of shares of less than one standard unit. 

5. Decrease of 11,206 in treasury stock for the year ended March 31, 2011, was due 
to the sale of 10,885 shares held by a consolidated subsidiary, and 321 shares 
through the sale of shares of less than one standard unit. 
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20. Shareholders’ Equity (continued) 

(b) Dividends
 (i) Dividends paid 

Resolution 
Type of 
Stock 

Total 
Dividends

Dividend 
per Share

Record 
Date 

Effective 
Date 

General shareholders’ 
meeting on June 25, 2009 

Common 
stock

¥2,763 
million 

¥32 
March 31, 

2009 
June 26, 

2009 
Directors’ meeting on 
November 10, 2009 

Common 
stock

¥1,036 
million 

¥12 
September 30, 

2009 
December 10, 

2009 
General shareholders’ 
meeting on June 24, 2010 

Common 
stock

¥1,727 
million 

¥20 
March 31, 

2010 
June 25, 

2010 
Directors’ meeting on 
November 2, 2010 

Common 
stock

¥1,053 
million 

¥12 
September 30, 

2010 
December 10, 

2010 

(ii) The effective date for dividends with a record date of March 31, 2011, shall be a 
date after the close of books for the said consolidated period. 

Resolution 
Type of 
Stock 

Total 
Dividend

s

Source of 
Dividend

s

Dividend 
per Share 

Record 
Date 

Effective 
Date 

General shareholders’ 
meeting on June 24, 2011 

Common 
stock

¥1,755 
million 

Retained 
earnings

¥20 
March 31, 

2011 
June 27, 

2011 

21. Amounts per Share 

Year ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011
(Yen) (U.S. dollars)

Net income:    
Basic ¥     68.19 ¥     89.25 $  0.82 
Diluted – – – 
Net assets 1,636.56 1,602.77 19.68 

Cash dividends applicable to the year 32.00 32.00 0.38 

Basic net income per share is computed based on the net income available for distribution 
to shareholders of common stock and the weighted-average number of shares of common 
stock outstanding during each year. 

Diluted net income per share is computed based on the net income available for distribution 
to shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding 
during each year after giving effect to the dilutive potential of shares of common stock to 
be issued upon the conversion of convertible bonds and the exercise of stock options. Since 
no dilutive potential of shares existed, the figures for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 
2010, are not represented. 

Amounts per share of net assets are computed based on shareholders’ equity and the 
number of shares of common stock outstanding at the year end. 

Cash dividends per share represent the cash dividends resolved by the General Shareholders’ 
Meeting as applicable to that year, together with any interim cash dividends paid. 
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22. Leases

(a) As Lessee 

 As described in Note 1(i) finance lease transactions that were contracted before April 1, 
2008, were accounted for as operating leases. The following summarizes information 
concerning such finance leases if capitalized: 

(i) Equivalents of acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net balance as of 
March 31, 2011 and 2010 

March 31, 2011
Acquisition 

cost 
Accumulated 
depreciation

Accumulated 
impairment loss Balance

(Millions of yen)

Machinery and vehicles ¥1,456 ¥1,235 ¥  – ¥221 
Equipment 2,022 1,558 32 432 
Other 739 428 – 311 

¥4,217 ¥3,221 ¥32 ¥964 

March 31, 2010
Acquisition 

cost 
Accumulated 
depreciation

Accumulated 
impairment loss Balance

(Millions of yen)

Machinery and vehicles ¥2,932 ¥2,217 ¥  – ¥   715 
Equipment 4,553 3,187 36 1,330 
Other 1,211 732 – 479 

¥8,696 ¥6,136 ¥36 ¥2,524 

March 31, 2011
Acquisition 

cost 
Accumulated 
depreciation

Accumulated 
impairment loss Balance

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Machinery and vehicles $17,515 $14,863 $    – $ 2,652 
Equipment 24,314 18,733 389 5,192 
Other 8,892 5,147 – 3,745 

$50,721 $38,743 $389 $11,589 

(ii) Amount of future lease payments outstanding as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, 
including the interest portion, categorized by contractual maturity 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Within one year ¥1,397 ¥2,878 $16,799 
Over one year 774 2,351 9,306
Total ¥2,171 ¥5,229 $26,105

Account balance of impairment 
loss on leased assets ¥      2 ¥     15 $      25 

33 

22. Leases (continued) 

(a) As Lessee (continued) 

(iii) Lease expenses, reversal of impairment loss on lease assets, depreciation, interest 
expenses and impairment loss for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 

Year ended March 31, 2011 2010 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)

Lease expenses ¥1,932 ¥2,986 $23,234 
Reversal of impairment loss on 

lease assets 13 14 159 
Depreciation 1,734 2,772 20,853 
Interest expenses 74 154 889 

 Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method under the condition that the 
useful life equals the lease term with no residual value. 

(iv) The amounts of future lease payments outstanding on noncancelable operating  
leases as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, are summarized as follows: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Within one year ¥  854 ¥1,219 $10,274 
Over one year 345 1,379 4,149
Total ¥ 1,199 ¥2,598 $14,423

(b) As Lessor 

(i) Investments in finance leases as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the 
following:

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Lease receivables ¥8,881 ¥7,766 $106,803 
Estimated residual value - 2 -
Interest portion (522) (597) (6,278)
Investments in finance leases ¥8,359 ¥7,171 $100,525
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22. Leases (continued) 

(b) As Lessor (continued) 

(ii) Lease receivables and expected collections of investments in finance leases as of 
March 31, 2011 and 2010, are as follows: 

Lease receivables:
March 31, 

2011 2010 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)

Within one year ¥106 ¥124 $1,268 
One to two years 96 110 1,157 
Two to three years 91 96 1,090 
Three to four years 53 61 636 
Four to five years 10 23 124 
Over five years 0 24 5
Total ¥356 ¥428 $4,280

   Investments in finance leases: 
March 31, 

2011 2010 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)

Within one year ¥2,908 ¥2,601 $ 34,974 
One to two years 2,358 2,053 28,360 
Two to three years 1,650 1,609 19,840 
Three to four years 1,036 930 12,455 
Four to five years 434 329 5,221 
Over five years 495 244 5,953
Total ¥8,881 ¥7,766 $106,803

(iii) The amount of future lease payments receivable on operating leases outstanding 
as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, are categorized by contractual maturity. 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Within one year ¥ -44 ¥24 $--525
Over one year 100 62 1,202
Total ¥144 ¥86 $1,727
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23. Stock Options 

Costs related to stock options that are included in selling, general and administrative 
expenses totaled ¥10 million ($126 thousand) and ¥11 million for the years ended March 31, 
2011 and 2010, respectively. 

The following table summarizes activities regarding stock option plans that the Company 
has granted to its directors, officers and employees as of March 31, 2011. 

3rd 4th 

Title and number 
of recipients 

The Company: 
Directors 2 

Subsidiaries:
Directors 7 
Officers 16 
Employees 535 

The Company: 
Officer 1 

Subsidiaries:
Directors 2 
Officers 3 
Employees 67 

Remaining number 
of stock options 
(common stock) 

– shares 2,370 shares 

Stock issue price ¥4,014 ¥1,489 
Date of receipt April 1, 2008 April 1, 2008 

Requisite service 
period

In principle, the 
period beginning 
April 1, 2008, through 
December 31, 2010 

In principle, the 
period beginning 
April 1, 2008, through 
March 31, 2011 

Exercise period April 1, 2008 through
December 31, 2010 

April 1, 2008 through
March 31, 2011 

24. Statement of Cash Flows 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 

 The components of cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2011 and 2010, were as 
follows: 

March 31, 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Cash and deposits ¥36,730 ¥47,193 $441,724 
Marketable securities 301 321 3,624
Total 37,031 47,514 445,348 
Time deposits with original maturity 

over three months (338) (306) (4,063) 
Securities with original maturity over 

three months (200) (220) (2,405)
Cash and cash equivalents ¥36,493 ¥46,988 $438,880
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24. Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 

(b) Assets and liabilities of newly consolidated subsidiaries 

 The composition of assets and liabilities, acquisition cost, and net profits and losses 
due to the acquisition of newly consolidated companies for the year ended March 31, 
2011 and 2010, were as follows: 

SORUN CORPORATION and its 14 subsidiaries (As of December 31, 2009) 

(Millions of 
yen)

Current assets ¥19,058 
Fixed assets 7,764 
Goodwill 4,408 
Current liabilities (6,450) 
Noncurrent liabilities (3,886) 
Minority interests (1,713)
Acquisition cost of SORUN 
CORPORATION shares 19,181

Cash and cash equivalents of SORUN 
CORPORATION and its 14 subsidiaries (8,264)

Net payment for acquisition ¥10,917

(c) Significant noncash activities 

(i)The Group acquired assets and obligations on finance lease transactions amounting 
to ¥1,374 million ($16,529 thousand) and ¥1,380 million during the years ended 
March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

(ii) On April 1, 2010, the Company made SORUN CORPORATION (“SORUN”) into 
a wholly-owned subsidiary through share exchange. Due to the transaction 
additional paid-in capital increased by ¥1,610 million ($19,368 thousand) and 
goodwill was incurred to the amount of ￥458 million ($5,509 thousand). 

(iii) Asset retirement obligations amounting to ¥2,563 million ($30,822 thousand) 
were newly recorded during the year ended March 31, 2011.  

25. Segment Information 

(a) Outline of reportable segment
Effective April 1,2010, the Group adopted “Revised Accounting Standard for 
Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (ASBJ 
Statement No. 17 issued on March 27, 2009) and “Guidance on the Accounting 
Standard for Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” 
(Guidance No. 20 issued on March 21, 2008). 

Segment Information for the year ended March 31, 2010, has been restated in 
accordance with such accounting standards for comparative purpose. 
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25. Segment Information (continued) 

(a) Outline of reportable segment (continued)

A reportable segment is a component of the Group for which discrete financial 
information is available and whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Board 
of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance 

The Company, which operates purely as a holding company, manages the Group by 
strategies planned for each subsidiary group. Each subsidiary group provides 
information services including outsourcing network, software development and solutions. 
Therefore, reportable segments are composed of subsidiary groups such as “TIS Group,” 
“INTEC Group,” “SORUN Group,” UFIT Group,” and “AGREX Group.” 

TIS Group 
Six companies, headed by TIS Inc. provide mainly software development in various 
areas including finance, production and services, and also provide outsourcing 
network and solutions. 

INTEC Group 
Eleven companies, headed by INTEC Inc., provide mainly software development in 
various areas including finance, production, merchandising, medicine and public 
services, and also provide outsourcing network, solutions, and renting and managing 
real estate. 

SORUN Group 
Fourteen companies, headed by SORUN CORPORATION, provide mainly software 
development in areas including finance, production, communication and public 
services, and also provide solutions. 

UFIT Group 
Three companies，headed by UFIT Co., Ltd., provide mainly outsourcing network in 
areas including credit card and banking, and also provide software development and 
solutions. 

AGREX Group 
Seven companies， headed by AGREX INC., provide mainly outsourcing network as a 
leading company in BPO (business process outsourcing) business, and also provide 
software development and solutions. 

(b)  Calculation of net sales, income (or loss), assets, liabilities and other items by 
reportable segment 
The accounting policies of the segment are substanitially the same as those described in 
the significant accounting policies in Note 1. 

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating income or loss. 
Intersegment sales are recorded at the same price used in transactions with third 
parties.
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25. Segment Information (continued) 

(c) Net sales, income (or loss), assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows. 

For the year ended 2011 
 Reporting segment 

Other* Total 
  TIS  INTEC  SORUN  UFIT  AGREX Total 
 (Millions of yen) 
Net sales      

Sales to third parties ¥79,447 ¥102,198 ¥45,117 ¥37,622 ¥26,322 ¥290,706 ¥32,467 ¥323,173  
Intersegment sales and transfers 2,484 979 671 751 906 5,791 7,552 13,343  

  Total sales 81,931 103,177 45,788 38,373 27,228 296,497 40,019 336,516  
Segment income 4,526 4,423 121 1,420 637 11,127 1,387 12,514  
Segment assets 99,647 115,690 29,007 26,511 12,435 283,290 30,402 313,692  
Segment liabilities 25,500 35,801 954 － － 62,255 2,660 64,915  
Other items:      

 Depreciation 3,370 5,029 630 1,795 527 11,351 941 12,292  

 Amortization of goodwill 8 780 977 － 223 1,988 0 1,988  

 Investment in companies to which  
the equity method is applied 68 389 658 － － 1,115 － 1,115

 Increase in property & equipment and intangibles 
assets 10,293 4,345 747 1,075 855 17,315 1,169 18,484  

 * “Other” means business segment not included in reporting segments and includes QUALICA Group. 
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25. Segment Information (continued) 

For the year ended 2011 
 Reportable segment 

Other* Total 
  TIS  INTEC  SORUN  UFIT  AGREX Total 
 (Thousands of U.S.dollars) 
Net sales      

Sales to third parties $ 955,459 $1,229,086 $542,597  $452,462 $316,560 $3,496,164 $390,468 $3,886,632  

Intersegment sales and transfers 29,878 11,775 8,068  9,030 10,897 69,648 90,823 160,471  

  Total sales 985,337 1,240,861 550,665  461,492 327,457 3,565,812 481,291 4,047,103  
Segment income 54,425 53,196 1,460  17,074 7,658 133,813 16,681 150,494  
Segment assets 1,198,397 1,391,344 348,846  318,839 149,546 3,406,971 365,635 3,772,606  
Segment liabilities 306,675 430,559 11,471 － － 748,705 31,990 780,695 
Other items:      

 Depreciation 40,533 60,482 7,574  21,587 6,339 136,515 11,312 147,827  
 Amortization of goodwill 95 9,374 11,751  － 2,690 23,910 2 23,961  

 Investment in companies to which  
the equity method is applied 821 4,675 7,915  － － 13,411 － 13,411

 Increase in property and equipment, and intangible 
assets 123,784 52,254 8,980  12,927 10,285 208,230 14,062 222,292  

 * “Other” means business segment not included in reporting segments and includes QUALICA Group. 
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25. Segment Information (continued) 

For the year ended 2010 
 Reportable segment 

Other* Total 
  TIS  INTEC  SORUN  UFIT  AGREX Total 
 (Millions of yen) 
Net sales      

Sales to third parties ¥89,315 ¥114,576 ¥13,601 ¥41,822 ¥25,711 ¥285,025 ¥28,832 ¥313,857  
Intersegment sales and transfers 1,532 558 205 884 880 4,059 2,674 6,733  

  Total sales 90,847 115,134 13,806 42,706 26,591 289,084 31,506 320,590  
Segment income 5,028 6,666 1,244 1,729 650 15,317 789 16,106  
Segment assets 97,071 123,169 32,167 30,176 12,962 295,545 23,764 319,309  
Segment liabilities 27,500 41,913 1,989 － 230 71,632 2,214 73,846  
Other items:      

 Depreciation 3,299 4,943 145 2,097 547 11,031 936 11,967  
 Amortization of goodwill － 953 221 － 239 1,413 65 1,478  

 Investment in companies to which the equity 
method is applied 53 959 712 － 3 1,727 － 1,727

 Increase in property and equipment, and intangible 
assets 5,107 6,647 165 1,814 680 14,413 1,206 15,619  

 * “Other” means business segment not included in reporting segments and includes QUALICA Group. 
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25. Segment Information (continued) 

(d) Reconciliation between total amounts of reportable segments and amounts on the 
consolidated financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 were as 
follows. 

Net sales 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Total on reportable segments  ¥ 296,497 ¥ 289,084 $3,565,812 
Sales included in other 40,019 31,506 481,291 
Elimination of intersegment transactions (13,343) (6,734) (160,471)
Net sales on consolidated financial 

statements ¥ 323,173 ¥313,856 $3,886,632

Operating income 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Total on reportable segments  ¥11,127 ¥15,317 $133,813 
Sales included in other 1,387 788 16,681 
Elimination of intersegment income (98) 93 (1,174) 
Other 402 (202) 4,840
Operating income on consolidated 

financial statements ¥12,818 ¥15,996 $154,160

Total assets 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Total on reportable segments  ¥283,290 ¥295,545 $3,406,971 
Sales included in other 30,402 23,764 365,635 
Elimination of intersegment income (11,004) (3,398) (132,341) 
Other (1,612) (2,834) (19,387)
Total assets on consolidated financial 

statements ¥301,076 ¥313,077 $3,620,878

Total liabilities 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Total on reportable segments  ¥  62,255 ¥ 71,632 $  748,705 
Sales included in other 2,660 2,214 31,990 
Other 85,051 84,156 1,022,862
Total liabilities on consolidated financial 

statements ¥149,966 ¥158,002 $1,803,557
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25. Segment Information (continued) 

Depreciation 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Total on reportable segments  ¥ 11,351 ¥11,032 $136,515 
Other  941 936 11,312 
Adjustment 16 11 196
Total depreciation on consolidated 

financial statements ¥12,308 ¥11,979 $148,023

Increase in property and equipment, and intangible assets 
2011 2010 2011

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Total on reportable segments  ¥17,315 ¥14,413 $208,230 
Other  1,169 1,206 14,062 
Adjustment (28) (22) (330)
Total increase in property and equipment, 

and intangible assets on consolidated 
financial statements ¥18,456 ¥15,597 $221,962

(e) Net sales to external customers by goods or services for the year ended march 31, 2011 
was as follows. 

2011 2011
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars)
Outsourcing network ¥124,496 $1,497,249 
Software development 163,890 1,971,011 
Solutions 27,183 326,918 
Other 7,604 91,454
Total net sales ¥323,173 $3,886,632

(f) Other income (or loss), goodwill and negative goodwill by reportable segment for the year 
ended March 31, 2011 was as follows.

 Reportable segment Corporate/  
elimination Total

 TIS  INTEC SORUN UFIT AGREX Other＊

 (Millions of yen) 

Impairment loss ¥452 ¥ 512 ¥   11 ¥76 ¥ 12 ¥11     ¥  – ¥1,074 

Goodwill:      

 Amortization  8 779 977 – 224 0 – 1,988 

 Year-end balance  71 1,502 3,682 – 297 0 – 5,552 
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25. Segment Information (continued) 

 Reportable segment Corporate/  
elimination Total

 TIS  INTEC SORUN UFIT AGREX Other＊

 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Impairment loss $5,433 $ 6,161 $  133 $919 $  148 $126    $ – $12,920

Goodwill:     

 Amortization  95 9,374 11,751 – 2,691 2 – 23,913

 Year-end balance  852 18,058 44,283 – 3,573 0 – 66,766

*  “Other” includes QUALICA Group. 

Incurred by business combinations of subsidiaries before April 1, 2010. 
 Reportable segment Corporate/  

elimination Total
 TIS  INTEC SORUN UFIT AGREX Other＊

 (Millions of yen) 

Negative goodwill:      

 Amortization   ¥ – ¥ 4 ¥ – ¥ 71 ¥ – ¥ 12 ¥ – ¥ 87

 Year-end balance  – – – – – 35 – 35

(g) For  the year ended March 31, 2011, UFIT Group recognized negative goodwill, 
amounting to ￥2,999 million ($36,069 thousand). This was incurred by making UFIT 
Co., Ltd. into a wholly-owned subsidiary in advance of the merger of TIS Inc., 
SORUN CORPORATION and UFIT Co., Ltd. 
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26. Business Combination 

The Group carried out the following business combinations during the years ended March 31, 
2011 and 2010. 

For the year ended March 31, 2010: 

Application of Purchase Method 

(a) Acquisition of stock in SORUN CORPORATION 

(i) Name and business line of acquired entity, main reason for business combination, 
date of combination, legal form of combination, and acquired ratio of voting rights 

i) Name and business line of acquired entity 
Name:  SORUN CORPORATION (both before and after combination) 
Business:  Systems consulting, engineering services, outsourcing services, 
e-business support, information security services and package sales 

ii) Main reason for business combination 
 To expand scale and reinforce services, to develop overseas and innovative 

operations and to enhance efficiency of operations 

iii) Date of combination: December 22, 2009 

iv) Legal form of combination: Stock acquisition by tender offer 

v) Acquired ratio of voting rights: 91.55% 

(ii) Term of business performance, included in consolidated financial statements, for 
the acquired entity 

 January 1, 2010, to March 31, 2010 

(iii) Cost of acquisition and components thereof 
 Common stock acquisition expense:  ¥18,852 million  
 Expenses, including advisory services, directly related to stock acquisition: 

   ¥329 million  
 Total cost of acquisition:  ¥19,181 million  

(iv) Amount of goodwill incurred, cause, amortization method and period of 
amortization 

i) Amount of goodwill incurred:  ¥4,408 million  

ii) Cause 
 Principally, expected excess profitability generated by business development 

of SORUN CORPORATION. 

iii) Amortization method and period of amortization 
 Average amortization over five years. 
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26. Business Combination (continued) 
Application of Purchase Method (continued) 

(v) Amount of assets and liabilities assumed on the date of combination and key 
components thereof 

(Assets)
Current assets ¥19,058 million  
Fixed assets 7,765 million 
Total ¥26,823 million 

(Liabilities)  
Current liabilities ¥  6,450 million  
Noncurrent liabilities 3,886 million 
Total ¥10,336 million 

(vi) Estimated impact on the consolidated statement of income for the year ended 
March 31, 2010, under the assumption that the business combination had been 
completed at the beginning of the year. 

Net sales ¥32,951 million  
Operating loss ¥     574 million  
Recurring loss ¥     727 million 
Net loss ¥     891 million  

 (Calculation method for estimates) 
 The estimated impact is the difference between sales and income summary 

calculated under the assumption that the business combination had been completed 
at the beginning of the consolidated year to the sales and income summary of the 
consolidated statement of income of the acquired entity. 

        This note is unaudited. 

For the year ended March 31, 2011: 
Effective Aplil 1, 2010,  the Group adopted “Accounting Standard for Business 
Combinations” (ASBJ Statement No. 21 issued on December 26, 2008) and “Revised 
Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard 
for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Guidance No. 10 issued on  December 26, 2008). 

Transactions under common control 

(a) SORUN CORPORATION 
Effective on April 1, 2010, the Company made SORUN CORPORATION (“SORUN”) 
a wholly-owned subsidiary through share exchange. 

(i) Purpose of making SORUN a wholly-owned subsidiary through share exchange 
The Company conducted the tender offer targeting shares of SORUN (excluding 
treasury shares owned by SORUN) from November 13, 2009, to December 15, 2009, 
with an objective to make SORUN a wholly-owned subsidiary. As a result, the 
Company acquired 23,863,314 shares of SORUN stocks. However, the Company and 
SORUN decided to conduct the share exchange for the purpose of completing the 
process of making SORUN a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as had been 
originally planned. 
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26. Business Combination (continued) 

(ii) Cost of acquisition and components thereof 
 Description Millions of yen Thousands of 

U.S. dollars 
Stock acquisition 
expense

Common stock of the 
Company ¥1,610 $19,369

Direct cost Advisory fee & other 55 660 
Total cost of 
acquisition ¥1,665 $20,029

(iii) Transfer ratio for stock with voting rights and ratio determination 
i) Transfer ratio for stock with voting rights: 

0.74 share of common stock in the Company : 1 share of common stock in SORUN 
ii) Ratio determination 

In the interest of each company’s shareholders, a third-party opinion was 
requested to ascertain the fairness of the stock transfer ratio. The Company 
named Nomura Securities Co., Ltd., as its financial advisor, and SORUN 
named IBS Securities Co., Ltd., as its financial advisor. The two companies 
deliberated the respective third-party opinions and agreed that the ratio was 
appropriate.

(iv) Number of shares distributed 
1,415,179 shares of common stock of the Company 

(v) Amount of goodwill incurred, cause, amortization method and period of 
amortization 
i)  Amount of goodwill incurred: ¥458 million ($5,509 thousand) 
ii) Cause: acquisition for the prospective increase in profitability of the company 
iii) Amortization method and period of amortization:  

average amortization over five years.  

(b)  UFIT Co., Ltd. 
Effective on April 1, 2010, the Company made UFIT Co., Ltd. (“UFIT”) a 
wholly-owned subsidiary through purchase of treasury stock. 

(i) Manner and detail of the share exchange 
Effective on February 3, 2011, UFIT acquired all of its treasury stock (excluding 
shares owned by the Company) to become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
Company, in advance of the merger of TIS Inc., SORUN CORPORATION and UFIT 
Co., Ltd. on that day. 

(ii) Cost of acquisition 
 Description Millions of yen Thousands of 

U.S. dollars 
Consideration of 
acquisition 

Cash  
¥3,792 $45,604

Direct cost Advisory fee and other 53 632 
Total cost of 
acquisition ¥3,845 $46,236
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26. Business Combination (continued) 

(iii) Amount of negative goodwill incurred, cause, amortization method and period of 
amortization 
i) Amount of negative goodwill incurred: ¥2,999 million ($36,069 thousand) 
ii) Cause: net assets at market price attributable to minority interests on the 

deemed acquisition date exceeded its acquisition cost 
iii) Amortization method and period of amortization:  

average amortization over five years.  

27. Asset Retirement Obligations 

(a) Detail of asset retirement obligations 
Asset retirement obligations of the Company are composed of clean-up site obligations 
of lease agreements of the office buildings and clean-up obligations of halogen gas 
which is filled in fire extinction facilities at the data center of the Group. 

(b) Computation of asset retirement obligations 
Useful lives of the assets are estimated between 58 years and five years. Retirement 
obligations are computed by using discount rate of 0.8% to 2.4%. 

(c) Increase and decrease of asset retirement obligations 

 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. 
dollars 

As of April 1, 2010      ¥2,555      $30,721 
Increase in liabilities due to 
acquisition 8          101    
Accretion expense           64          766 
Liabilities settled   (22)         (265) 
As of March 31, 2011 ¥2,605       $31,323 
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28. Subsequent Events 

(a) Transactions under common control 

TIS Inc., SORUN CORPORATION and UFIT Co., Ltd, all consolidated subsidiaries of 
the Company, were merged into TIS Inc. on April 1, 2011.  

(i) Name and business line of acquired entity 
Surviving company 

 Name: TIS Inc.(same of after combination) 
 Business: Services to distribute information 

Liquidation company 
 Name: SORUN CORPORATION 
 Business: Services to distribute information 

 Name: UFIT Co., Ltd, 
 Business: Services to distribute information 

(ii) Date of combination 
 April 1, 2011 

(iii) Legal form of combination 
 Stock acquisition 

(iv) During the course of the merger no new stock was issued because it was a 
merger among the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. 

(v) Main reason for business combination 
The object of the merger was to expand the area of operation of engineers, to 
utilize efficiently the resources of the data center and to strengthen financial 
structures with an emphasis on building operating systems for financial business 
including credit card, banking, securities and insurance. 

(b) The following appropriations of retained earnings of the Company, which have not 
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 
2011, were approved at a shareholders’ meeting held on June 24, 2011. 

(Millions of 
yen)

(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars) 

Cash dividends (¥20.00 = $0.24 per share) ¥1,755 $21,112 
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Company name IT Holdings Corporation

Established April 1, 2008

Main business
Management and business execution of group companies

that carry on information and communication business

Tokyo head office

Hibiya Daibiru, 1-2-2 Uchisaiwai-cho, 

Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0011 Japan

Tel. +81-3-6738-8100

Fax. +81-3-3503-2551

Toyama head office
5-5 Ushijima-shinmachi, Toyama 930-0856 Japan

Tel. +81-76-444-8011

Fax. +81-76-444-8012

Paid-in capital ¥ 10 billion

Number of shares 

Authorized 280,000,000 shares

Issued 87,789,098 shares

Number of shareholders 17,963

Stock listing Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section (Securities code: 3626)

Corporate Data (As of March 31, 2011)

Name Number of 
shares 

(Thousands)

Shareholding 
ratio 
(%)

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Limited (Trust Account) 7,869 10.2

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Limited (Trust Account) 5,840 6.7

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Limited (Trust Account 9) 3,204 3.7

Nippon Life Insurance Company 2,591 3.0

Trust and Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Securities 
Investment Trust Account)

2,584 2.9

Employees’ shareholding association of IT Holdings 
Corporation

1,991 2.3

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,654 1.9

Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 4) 1,630 1.9

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Retirement Benefit 
Trust Account, Mitsubishi Electric Corporation Account )

1,598 1.8

Trust and Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Pension Trust 
Account)

1,337 1.5

Major Shareholders (As of March 31, 2011)

TIS Inc.

INTEC Inc.

AGREX INC.

QUALICA INC.

AJS Inc.

NEXWAY Co., Ltd.

IUK Inc.

AGMS CORPORATION

Cloud Scope Technologies, Inc.

NEOAXIS Co., Ltd.

Oartech, Inc.

Keyport Solutions, Inc.

First Manage Inc.

AGREX FINE TECHNO INC.

INTEC Solution Power Inc.

IN-X Co., Ltd.

TIS Solution Link Inc.

System Support Co., Ltd.

Chuo System Corporation

TIS System Service Inc.

BM Consultants Inc.

AC MEDICAL INC.

UPSHE Co., Ltd.

ALMEC Co., Ltd.

Medical Toukei Co., Ltd.

KOUSHI INTEC Inc. 

Sorun Hokuriku Inc.

SORUN WEST JAPAN CORPORATION

SORUN Hokkaido Inc.

SORUN-TOUHOKU Inc.

HOKKOKU INTEC SERVICE Inc.

BEIJING SORUN COMPUTER CO., LTD.

INTEC Information Technology (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.

TISI (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

INTEC Information Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

QUALICA (SHANGHAI) Inc.

TIS R&D Center, Inc.

TIANJIN LARGE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

TIANJIN SORUN DIGITAL SOFTWARE CORPORATION

Tianjin TIS Hi-tech Information System Service Co., Ltd.

SORUN CHINA CORPORATION

TKSOFT SINGAPORE PTE. Ltd.

ITI, Inc.

IT Service Force Inc.

Career Service Inc.

INTEC Amenity Inc.

SKY INTEC Inc.

Registration Network, Ltd.

IT Partners, Inc.

TIS Total Service Co., Ltd.

SORUN ESTATE CORPORATION

SorunPure Inc.

MITEC Inc.

INTEC IT Capital, Inc.

WITH INTEC Inc.

TIS LEASING Co., Ltd.

Principal Companies Regional Companies in Japan

IT Holdings Group (As of October 1, 2011)

Solution Services and Sales

Marketing Solution Services

Financial IT Services

System Development, and 
Management and Operations

Consulting Services and Research

Contract Research Organization 
(CRO)

Overseas Businesses

Other Specific Businesses

Note: �AJS SOFTWARE Co., Ltd. merged with AJS Inc. on October 1, 2011. 

CST Co., Ltd. changed its name to TIS Solution Link Inc. on October 1, 2011.
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For further information contact:

Public Relations Department, Administration Division

TEL: 	+81-3-6738-7557
FAX: 	+81-3-3503-2551
E-mail: ir_info@itholdings.co.jp

Any revisions to information in this annual report 
subsequent to publication will be posted at:  

http://www.itholdings.co.jp/e/

http://www.itholdings.co.jp/e/
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